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BOARD'S REPORT
To
The Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 11" Annual Report and the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year ended 31% March 2017, These Financial Statements are prepared as per
NCLT order dated 3 November, 2017 and it is fof representation purpose and understanding of the
stakeholders,

The Company has changed as “Gayatri Highways Private Limited” with effect from 7 August, 2017.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY: '
The financial results of your company for the year ended 31% March 2017 are as follows:

s, For the year ended | For the year ended
No. | Particulars 31.03.2017 (Rs.) 31.03.2016 (Rs,)
1) | INCOME

Revenue from operations - “
Other income - -
Flnance income - : -
TOTAL - n

2) EXPENDITURE
Employee Benefits Expense - -
Finance Costs - -
Depreciation & Amorlizaltion expense - -

e e e e e it e

Other Expenses 23,592 32,371
TOTAL 23,592 32,171
3) | Loss before tax from continuing operations (23,592) {32,171)
- Current Tax ‘ - - f
4) | Loss for the year (23,592) (32,171)
Earning (Loss) per Share -- Basic & Diluted {0.00) {(1.61)

2. THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT _
During the year under review, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide s order dated 3rd November, '
2017 approving the composite Scheme of Arrangement Between Gayatri Highways Private Limited (GHPL)
(“the Company”) (Formerly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited), Gayatri Projects Limited and Gayatri Infra |

Ventures Limited and their respective shareholders,

3. FUTURE QUTLOOK
As per the NCLT order dated 3" November, 2017, with.effect from 31 malch 2017 (appomtcd date) the :
..'-assets and %Jablltiles cr lnfrastructwe BOI has: beeﬂ 1ransferred from Gayatn Pro;ects hnntcd to Gayatn.._;.:é :
| 1lghWays Private Limi&d Your’ manaqemeni Wi ensure the, smooth runmng of the said bOI pzo;ects L
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4, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The Extracts of Annual Return is prepared In Form MGT-9 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 12 of Companies {Management and Administration} Rules, 2014 and the same is enclosed as

Annexure-IL.

5. BOARD MEETINGS
During the year ended 31% March, 2017, Five Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companias Act, 2013,

Attendance of Directors at the meetings:
The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meelings held during the year ended 31% March,
2017.

Nan_*ae of the Number of Board Meetings
Director Held Attended
T. Sarita Reddy 5 5
P. Purnachander Rao 5 5

6. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of thelr knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by

them, your Directors make the following statements In terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

a. that in the preparation of the annual financiaf statements for the year ended 31% March, 2017, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b. that such accounting policies and applied them consistently and judgement and estimates have been
made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affalrs of the
Company as at 31 March, 2017 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adeguate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assels of the Company

1 4

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;
e. that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and
were operating effectively,
f. that systems o ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable faws were in place and were :

adequate and operating effectively. ¢

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERJIAL PERSONNEL
There is no change in the Board of Directors of the Company during the Financial Year ending 315‘_March
2017, '

8, DECLARATION BY. INDEPENDENT DIRE:CTORS S
- -Sc‘clj:on J49(7) of Ihb (‘ompdmcs Aol ?G] 3 15 nol apphmb!u 10 iho C ompdny A
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9, RE-APPOINTMENTS
N.A

10. POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors lays down the manner of selection of Board of Directors and their

remuneration.

11. AUDITORS REPORT
There are no qualifications In the Auditors Report,

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
The particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 188 in the Form

AOC — 2 Is annexed herewith as Annexure-II.

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 188 is NI,

i4. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES
The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve for the Financlal Year ended

31% March, 2017.

15. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares for the financlal year ended
31% March, 2017,

16. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company has change the name itself as “Gayatri Highways Private Limited" with effect from 7" August,
2017,

Pursuant to above said NCLT order with effect from 1st April, 2016 {i.e., appointed date for transfer of
Investments held i Sai Maatarini Tollways Limited (SMTL) by Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL) to Gayatri
Highways Private Limited (GHPL)}, all the Equity Investments in STML has been transferred from GPL to
GHPL.

Further, as per the NCLT order with effect from 31st March, 2017 fi.e. appointed date for Demerger of
Infrastructure BOT assets from Gayatri Projects Limited to Gayatri Highways Private Limited] the company will
“have two submduancs namely, "Indore Dewas Tollways hn’nted (IDTL)" and “Sal Maatarinl Tollways Limited
EI_f -’(SMTL)" and ﬂvc, Jointly controlled entmes namoly, “Cayatrl JhdﬂSl Roadwaye Limited (GJRL)" “Gayatu ldllipw : '
"*Roadways_inmted (Gi R( )” “Hydembad Exp;essways hml ed (HEL)" “Cybuabacl l’xpressways lim -ci: CEL)"
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17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign £xchange Earnings and

Outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies {Accounts)

Rules, 2014 is Nit,

18. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY
The Company has implemented a standard operating procedure for all accounting and financlal matters to

reduce accounting and financial risk to minimal levels and to ensure that the financial statements are free of

material misstatements.

19, POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR

The policy developed and implemented by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken

during the year is Nil as the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in this regard are not applicable to

the Cornpany.

20. BOARD EVALUATION
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance

evaluation of its own performance and the directors Individually.

21. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the Financial Year ending on 31% March 2017, your Company had no subsidiaries and associate

Companies.

The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its order dated 3™ November, 2017 approving the
composite Scheme of Arrangement Between the Company, Gayatri Projects Limited, Gayatr Infra Ventures
Limited and their respective shareholders consisting of the following:

1, Transfer of investments in SMTL from GPL to GDPL,
2. Amalgamation of the Gayatri Infra Ventures 1td with Gayatri Projects Limited
3. Transfer of Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business from Gayatri Projects Limited to Gayatri Domicile

Private Limited by way of demerger,

with effect from 31 march, 2017 {appointed date) the assets and liabilities of infrastructure BOT has been

transferred from Gayairi Projects Limited to Gayalrl highways Private Limited
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The names of companies which have become or ceased to be Company’s Subsidiaries, joint

ventures or associate companies during the year

The following companies are subsidiary/associates/jointly controlled entities:
Subsidiaries:

Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

Sai Maatarini Tollways Limited
Associates:

Balaji Highway Holdings Private Limited
Jointly Controlled Entities:

Gayatr] Jhansi Roadways Limited
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Hyderabad Expressways Limited
Cyberabad Expressways Limited

HKR Roadways Limited

22, DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act,

2013 and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

23. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going

concern status of the Company and its future operations,

The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its order dated 3™ November, 2017 approving the
composite Scheme of Arrangement Between the Com|:’>"any, Gayatri Projects Limited, Gayatrl Infra Ventures

Limited and their respective shareholders consisting of the following:

1. Transfer of investments in SMTL from GPL to GDPL,
2. Amalgamation of the Gayatri Infra Ventures Lid with Gayatri Projects Limited
3. Transfer-of Infrastructure Road BOT Assels Business from Gayatri Projects Limited to Gayatrl Domicile

Private Limited by way of demerger.

With effect from 31% march, 2017 (appointed date) the assels and liabilities of infrastructure BOT has been |}
transferred from Gayatri Projects Limited to Gayatri highways Private Limited

24. STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s G.S. Sal Babu & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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25, PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided

upon request,

26. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Your Company has ensured that appropriate policies and procedures are adopted for ensuring orderly and
efficient conduct of the business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
prevention and detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the

timely preparation of refiable financlal information.

27. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Your Company lays emphasis on competence and commitment of its human capltai recegnizing its pivotal role

for organizational growth,
During the year, the Company maintained a record of peaceful employee relations. Your Directors wish to

place on record thelr appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees throughout the year,

28. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors express thelr appreciation to the Company's Bankers, Statutory Auditors, Customers,

Consultants and Members for their constant help, co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board

ﬂ/w/‘}/é

Place: Hyderabad T. SARITA RED P. PURNACHANDER RAO

Date: D4} -2} DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 00017122 DIN: 02230190
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ANNEXURE — X
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31.03.2017
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN

Registration Date
Name of the Company

U45100TG2006PTCO52146

28/12/2006

GAYATRI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly
Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non
Government Company

1* Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500082, Telangana.

E Mail: raikumar@aivi.co.n,

Tel: 040-23310330

Whether listed company Unlisted

Name, address and contact detalls of -
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Address of the Registered Office and
contact detatls

I1. Principal Business Activities of the Company

All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company
shall be stated:

Sl Name and Description of
No. main products / services

% to total turnover of
the company

NIC Code of the Product/
service

1 Hoiding activities 64200 100%

I1Y. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl | Name and address of %% of

Applicable

No.

the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

shares
held

Section

1

Gayatri Projects Ltd
6-3-1090, TSR Towers,
Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad-
500082, Telangana,

L999%9TG1989PLCO57 289

Holding

100

246}

Indore Dewas
Tollways Limiled,
6-3-1090, TSR Towers,
Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad
~ 500082, Telangana,

U45200TG2010PLOCEB238

Subsidiary

66.64

2(87)

Sai Maatarini
Tollways Limited,
6-3-1090, TSR Towers,

.| Rajbhavan Road, -

U45400TG2011PLC076396

Subsidiary

100

2(87)

- -|:Somajiguda, Hyder"abad '
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- 500082, Telangana.

4 Balaji Highway
Holdings Private
Limited,

6-3-1090, TSR Towets,
Raibhavan Road,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad
- 500082, Telangana.,

U45400TG2010PTCO68181

Associate

48.99

2(6)

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

year

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year

%
Change
during
the
year

Demat | Physical

Total

e/ of
total
Shares

Pemat

Physical

Total

% of
total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual / -
HUF

20,000

20,000

100

0.03

b) Central Govt, - -

¢) State Govt.{s) - -

d) Bodies - -
Corporate

e) Banks / Fl - -

) Any Other..., -

Sub-Total -
(A)(1):

(2) Foreign - -

a) NRIs - - -
Individuals

b) Other - - -
Individuals

¢) Bodies - -
Corporate

i) Banks / FI -

&) Any Other.... - -

Sub-Total - 4]
(AX(2):

Total -
Shareholding of
Promoters {A)

20,000

(A)(L)+(A)(2)

20,000

100

20,000

20,000

100

B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions
: | -a) Mutual Funds -
J UTI

byBanks/FL | -
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c) Central Govt,

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capiltal
Funds

f} Insurance
Companies

g) FiIs

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-Total
(B)(1):

(2) Nen~-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

i} Indian

ii} Overseas

b} Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs, 1 lakh

i) Indivickual
shareholders
holding.
nominal share
capltal in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
{specify)

Sub-Total
(B){(2):

- 1.42)

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total

(A4+B+C)

20,000

20,000

100

20,000

20,000

100
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R R

i} Shareholding of Promoters

s, Shareholders | Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the % change in
No, Name the year year shareholding
No. of % of %of Shares | No. of % of %eof Shares | during the
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / year
Shares encumbered | Shares encumbered
of the to total of the to total
company | shares company [ shares
Mr. T. V.
Sandeep Kurar ) 01 }
1 Reddy (Nominee 8,000 40 0.01 39.99
of GPL)
Ms. T, Indira
Subbarami ) 01 )
2 Reddy (Nominee 6,000 30 0.01 29.99
of GPL)
Ms. T. Sarita
3 Reddy {(Nominee 6,000 30 01 0.01 - 29.99
of GPL)
M/s. Gayatri i
4 Projects Limited - 19,997 99,97 99,97
Total 20,000 100 20,000 100 .

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {Please specify, if there is no change)

s, Shareholding at the Cumulative
No beginning of the year Shareholding during
the vear
No. of shares 9% of total No. of % of total
| shares of shares shares of
the the
company company
Al the beginning of the vear 20,000 100 - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters - - 19,997 99,97
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease {e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweal equity elc):
At the end of the year - - 20,000 100

iv) Shareholding Patltern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs) :

i, Far Each of the Top Shareholding at the cumulative Shareholding
No. 10 Shareholders heginning of the year during the year
No. of shares | % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of - - - -
the year
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Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase
/ decrease {e.q.
allotment / transfer
[ bonus / sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the
year { or on the date
of separation, if
separated during the
year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

sl
No.

For Each of the Top
10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the
heginning of the year

during the year

Cumulative Shareholding

No. of shares

9% of total
sharas of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

At the beginning of
the year

6,000

Date wise Increase f
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase
[ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer
/ bonus/ sweat
equity ete):

19,967

99.97

At the End of the
year

01

0.01

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding l.oans indebtedness
deposits

Indebledness at
the beginning of

1 the financia!
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year - 1,038,884 - 1,008,884
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but
not paid

i} Interest
accrued but not
Total (i-+ii+iii) - 1,08,884 - 1,08, 884
Change in
Indebtedness " - - -
during the
financial year
Addition - 145,25,10,619 - 145,25,10,619
Reduction - - - -

Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at - - - -
the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount | = 145,26,19,503 - 145,26,19,503
ii) Interest due but | - - -
not paid
jit) Interest - - - -
accrued but not
due

Total (F+ii+1ii) - 145,26,19,503 ~ 145,26,19,503

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total Amount
No, Manager

1. | Gross Salary - - -
{a) Salary as per provisions - - -
contained In Section 17{1) of the
income Tax Act, 1961

{b) Value of perquisites under - - -
Section 17(2) Income Tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act,

1961
2. | Stack Opticn - - -
3. | Sweal Equity - - N
4, Commission - - -

as % of profit - - -
others, specify... - - -
5. Others, please specify - - -
Total (A) - - -
Celling as per the Act - - -

B. Remuneration to other directors;
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1. Independent Directors
S, | Particulars of Name of Total Amount
No. | Remuneration Directors

- -

-Fee for attending - - -
Board/Committee
Meetings

-Commission - - -
- QOthers, please - - -
specify
Total (B)}(1) - - -

2, Other Non Executive Directors
sk | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Tota! Amount
No. Directors
-Fee for attending - - -
Board/Comimittee
Meetings

-Commission - - -
=~ Qthers, please - - -
specify
Total (B)2) - - -
Total (BY= (BY(1)+ (BX2)

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. | Remuneration
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary

i, Gross salary -
(a) Salary as per provisions - - - -
contalned in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - - - -
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits In lieu of salary - - - .
under section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option - - - -
Sweal Equity N - - -
Commission - - : - -
as % of profit - - - -
others, specily... - - - -
5. Cthers, please - - - -
specify §
Total - - - -

i ol g




GHPL Annua! Report 2016-17

VII, PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -N.A.-

Type Section of Brief Details of | Authority Appeal
the Description Penaity / [RD / NCLT macde,
Companies Punishment/ | / COURT} if any
Act Compounding (give

fees imposed Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

-

Compounding

-

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 24 =} e o}

;

for and on behalf of the Board

|

) i

i)

. SARITA REDD
DIRECTOR
DIN: 00017122/

DIRECTOR
DIN: 02230190




GHPL—11™ ANNUAL REPORT
\ - " " . * . e — -:1

AnnexureII ||
Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant o clause () of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of conlracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

() Duration of the contracts /
arrangements/transactions

(d} Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or NIL

arrangements or transactions

() date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, If any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in :
general meeting as required under first proviso to i
section 188

e o et e 5 L o i T d RS s i

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions al arm’s length basis

{a) Name(s) of the related parly and nature of
relationship B

S R A A S

T o R

(b) Nature of contracis/arrangements/transactions
NIL

R

R

{c) Duration of the contracts /
| arrangements/iransactions




T
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(d) Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

For and on behalf of the Board

W

Place: Hyderabad T/SARITA REDDY P, PURNACHANDER RAQ
Date: Q4.) ) L20)% “" DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 06017122 DIN: 02230190

e T

o e e




L% ad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of GAYATRI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly GAYATRI
DOMICILE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gayatri Hlighways Private Limited
(‘the Company’) (Formerly Gayatti Domicile Private Limited), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, These {inancial statements are prepared
as per NCLT Order dated 3ed November, 2017, and it is for tepresentation purpose and understanding
of the stakeholders.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the mattess stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including othet comptehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other itregularities; selection and application
of appropeiate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that ate teasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
prepatation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and ate
free from matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or etros.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalope financial staterents based on our audit,

We have talen into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are requited to be included in the audit teport under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standazds on Auditing specified vnder Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those standaeds sequire that we comply with etbical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these standalone financial statements are {ree from
matetial misstatement,

An andit involves performing proceduses (o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, Tn making those risk assessments,’ the anditor considers intemal financial controls relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements ‘that give a true and fairx view in order to .
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10.

11,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on these standalone financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
afotesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
pive a tue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
inclading Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affaits (financial position) of the
Company as at 31 March 2017, and its loss (financial petformance including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Maiter

The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 in accordance with the accouating principles generally accepted in
India, inclading the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) on which we issued auditor’s reports to the
shareholders of the Company dated 14 June 2016 and 19 August 2015 respectively. These financial
statements have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to Ind AS, which have also been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As requited by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in fetms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure I, a statement on
the matters specified in parageaphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Futther to our comments in Annexure I, as réquited by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and except as discussed in pazageaph, 11(g)(iv) below, obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the putposce of cur audit;

a) in our opinion, propes books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as,
it appears from our examination of those books;

b) the standalone financial statements dealt with by this seport are in agreement with the books of
account;

¢) it our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

d) on the basis of the written representations received from the divectors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

¢) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 Magch 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
-of the Company-for the year ended on that date and our eport dated 30, M“ly 2017 as ])Li Ann(n\um
Aex plmsui an um‘nochﬁc d opmmn 'md .




) with respect to the other matters to be inchuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company as detailed in Note 17 to standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impact

of pending litigations on its financial position;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative conttacts for which

thetre were any material foresceable losses;

iii.  there wete no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Fducation and

Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv.  the Company, as detaled in Note 23 to the standalone financial statements, has made requisite
disclosures in these standalone financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified
Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, However, we ate
unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to report on whether the disclosures

are in accordance with books of account maintained by the Company.

v the Company, during the year has received NCLT order vide dated 3¢ November 2017
approving Composite scheme of astangement between Gayatsd Projects Limited, Gayated Infra
Ventures Limited, Gayatri Highways Private Limited and their respective Shareholders,

accordingly the financial statements ate prepared considesing the effect of the said order,

For G.S.SAI BABU & ASSOCIATES
Chattered Accountants
Rinm’s Registration No.: 0142075/ /(\’

C-';
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Proprictor R
Membership Noi 208341 s

Place: Hyderabad
Dates Digoet b Wi




Annexute | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri Highways
Private Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Based on the audit procedures performed for the pugpose of reporting a true and fait view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of out
knowledge and belief, we repost that:

0] (a) ‘The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) The fixed assets have been physically vesified by the management during the year and no
matetial discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of the fixed assets is reasonable baving regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

(¢} The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘fixed assets’).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(f)(c) of the Order ate not applicable.

(i1) The Company does not have any inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the
Order are not applicable. :

(i) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LIPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provistons of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and
3(iii){c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) On the basis of information and explanations provided to us by the management, sead with
note 23 to the accompanying financial statements, the Company has not entered into any
transaction falling within the ambit of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence the provisions
of Clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

) It our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(v1) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.




(i) (@)  Undisputed statutory ducs inctuding provident fund, employees® state insugance, inncome-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have not been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities
and there have been significant delays in a latge number of cases. Undisputed amounts payable

: in respect theseof, which were outstanding at the yeas-end for a petiod of more than six months

from the date they became payable are as follows:

Name of the | Nature  of Amount Period to | Due date Date of
statute the dues ) which  the payment
ANV
relates
Income Tax | Tax 5,866,626 lFinancial Various dates | Not yet Paid
Act, 1961 deducted at Year 15-16
soutce
Income Tax | Tax 4,702,259 | Financial Vaticus Mot yet Paid
Act, 1961 deducted  at Year 16-17 Dates
: soutce
The Finance | Service Tax 6,049,084 | Financial 5 September | Not yet Paid
' Act, 1994 Year 12-13 2012

(b)) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-1ax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Natuze Amount | Amouatpaid | Perod to which | Forum  where
statute of dues &) under protest | the amount | dispute is
(I3 relates pending

Income Tax | Income 892,926 455,023 Financial Year | Commissioner

Act, 1961 Tax 08-09 of Income
tax(appeals),
IHyderal>ad

(viii) There ate no loans or botrowings payable to banks or government and no dues payable to

debenture-holders. The Company has defavlted in repayment of borrowings to the following
financial institution:

Name of the financial institution Amount of default | Period of default
()]
10, 8 F§ Financial Services Limited 19,502,755 2 months
(i) The Company did not raise moneys by way ol mitial public offer or further public ofter

{(including debt instruments), In out opinion, the term loans were applied fos the putposes for
which the loans were obrained,

(x) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has heen noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

() The Company bas not paid or provided for any managerial rennuneration. Accosdingly, the
o ovisions of Clause %(}.1) of the Order are not f)pp)mb]r- '

- 1o out opinjon, the (,ompmy is ot 2 NJdln C omp'my Accou 111; ly pmw-\lom ch clanse 3(\:1)
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{xiid) In our opinion all transactions with the gelated parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as vequired by the applicable Ind AS.

{xiv) Duging the yeas, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

(xv) In out opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors
; or persons connected with them covered nnder Section 192 of the Act.

{xovi) On the basis of information and explanations provided to us by the management, read with
note 24 to the accompanying financial statements, provisions of Section 451A of the Resetve
Bank of India Act, 1934 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has not
got itself registered under the aforesaid provisions as at 31 March 2017

For G.S.SAI BABU & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registratiop No.: 0142073
s %‘
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SATYA SAT
Proprietor
Membership No: 208341

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24y - )R 01




Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri
Highways Private Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Masch
2017

Independent Auditor’s teport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

In conjunction with out audit of the standalone financial statements of Gayatri Higlwways Private
Litnited (“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial teposting (IFColR) of the Company as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Ditectors is sesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting ctiteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficieat conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and erross, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our aundit. We
conducted out audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAL) and deemed to be presceibed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and
the Guidance Note requite that we comply with ethical requirerments aad plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoIR wete established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
opetating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. ‘The procedutes selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matesial misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
oug mudit opinion on the Company’s IIFColFR.

Hyderabn



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

i 6. A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the prepatation of financial statements for extesnal purposes in accordance with
penerally accepted accounting principles. A Company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
' transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assutance that
transactions ate recorded as niecessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and ditectors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection of unauth orised acquisition, use,
ox disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management ovetride of controls, matetial misstatements due to eteor of fraud may oceur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods ate subject to the risk
that IFCol'R may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies ot procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial conirols over
financial teporting and such internal financial controls over financial teporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting ctiteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intetnal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Iaternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Charteted Accountants of India,

For G.S.SAI BABU & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants G

Firm'’s Repisteation No.: 014 e
At
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SATYA SAT BA
Proprictor i
Membership Neo: 208341

Place: Fyderabad
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M NoG208341

Gayatri Highways Private Limited
(Formerly Gayatsi Domicile Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

(Al amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

_ As at As at As at
Notes 31 March 2017 31 Masch 2016 1 April 2015

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 - -
Intangible Assets
- Goodwill 75,55,193
Financial assets
- Investments 4(n) 2,85,30,61,398 -
- Loans 93,04,96,575 - .
Income tax assets, net 15 33,54,381 -

3,79,44,67,547 - -
Current assets
Financial assels
- Cash and cash equivalents G 65,88,253 2,849 2,849
- Loans 5 23,64,78,663 - .
Other Current Assefs 7 2,39,280 2,39 280 239,280

24,33,06,196 2,42,129 2,42,129

Total asscts 4,03,77,73,743 2,42,129 2,42,129
Equity and liabilities
BEquity
LEquity shate capital 8 47,93,03,800 2,00,0600 2,00,000
Preference share capital 8 1,67,70,03,000 - -
Other equity 9 24,34,31,787 {710,126) (37,955)
“T'otal Equity 2,39,97,38,587 1,29,874 1,62,045
Non-~current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 10{x) 1,23,50,00,000 - -
Current liabilities
Finatcial Mabilitics
~Short-tem botrowings 10(b 25,76,19,503 1,08,884 76,713
~I'rade payables 11 1,11,800 -
-Other financial Habilittes 12 16,50,00,585 - -
Other current liabilities 13 2,03,03,208 3,371 3,371
Total liabilitics 1,63,80,35,156 1,12,255 80,084
Total equity and Habilites 4,03,77,73,743 2,42,129 2,42,129

‘The accompanying notes form an integral past of the financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet refersed o in onr repost of even
date.

For G.8. Sai Babu & Asw(i.ueﬁ,m -
Chastered Accountants L" N :‘ % i\
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Gayatri Highways Private Limited
(Formetly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Other income - 3
Total income - -
Expenses
TLimployee benefits expense - .
Finance costs -
Depreciation expense 3 - 3
Other expenses 14 - 23,592 32,171
Total expense 23,592 32,1711
Loss before exceptional items and tax (23,592) (32,171)
Exceptional item - .
Loss before tax (23,592) (32,171)
Current tax . -
Loss for the year (23,592) (32,171)
Other comprehensive income - -
‘T'otal comprehensive loss for the yeat (23,592) (32,171)
Earnings pet equity share (EPES)
Basic (0.00) (1.61)
Diluted (0.00) {L61)

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss
refested to in our report of even date.

For G.S. Sai Babu & Associates For and on behalf of Board of directors of
Chartered Accountants yayaiti Highways Private Limited
Fizm Regn. No: 014207 - 1\
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Sayta Sai 11 Guiig @ 2 T Sarita Reddy
Proprictor
M.No.:208341

Place: Hyderabad
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Gayati Highways Private Limited
(Formerly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017

{All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

(a) Share capital

Number Amount
(i) Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 1 April 2015 20,000 2,00,060
At 31 March 2016 20,000 2,00,000
At 31 March 2017 4,79,30,380 47,93,03,800
(i) Preference Share Capital
Redeemable Preferetice shares of €10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 1 April 2015 - -
At 31 Mareh 2016 - -
At 31 March 2017 16,77,00,300 1,67,70,03,000

Note: The above capital sttucture is post NCLT ordet dated 3rd Novembes, 2017, which is
effective from 24th November, 2017 and it is disclosed for teptesentation purposc and
undetstanding of the stakeholders.

{b) Other equity

Capital Reserve Retafned Total equity
earnings

Balance as of 1 Aptil 2015 - (37,955) (37,955)
Loss for the year - (32,171) (32,171)
Other comprehensive income - - “
Add:  Financial guarantee given on
behalf of holding company - - -
Balance as of 31 March 2016 - {70,126) (70,126)
Balance as of 1 Apuil 2016 ~ {70,126) {70,126)
Loss for the year - (23,592} (23,592)
Add: Capital Reserve generated on
demerger of Infrastruciure BOT assets
from GPL 10 GHPL 24.35,25 505 - 24,35,25,505
Other comprehensive income - - -
Balance as of 31 March 2017 24,35,25,505 (93,718) 24,34,31,787

This is the Statement of Changes In
Tquity refesred to in our report of even
date.

Fos G.8. Sai Babu & Assogitess.,
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Gayatri Highways Private Limited
(FFormerly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 Masch 2017 31 March 2016
Cash flows from opetating activities
Loss before tax (23,592) (32,171}
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation expense -
Interest income and financial guarmln'cc income -
Logs on sale of investments -
Interest expense - .
Operating loss before wotking capital changes (23,592) (32,171)
Changes in working capital:
Increase in trade payables 1,11,800
Inerease/{decrease) in other current liabilitics 18,53,00,482
Increase/(decrease) in other current assets - -
Dectease in trade receivables - -
Decrease in loans and advances (1,16,69,75,238) -
Cash generaled in operating activities (98,15,86,548) (32,171
Less: Income faxes refund received / (paid) (33,54,381) -
Net cash genetated from operating activities A (98,49,40,929) 32,171
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received - -
Investments transferred from GPL (2,85,30,61,398)
Capital Reserve on Demesges of GPL to GHEIL 24,35,25,505
Goodwill recognised on acquisition of Subsidiary (75,55,193)
Proceeds from sale of investments - -
Net cash generated from investing activities B (2,61,70,91,086) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid - -
Proceeds from Lquity Share Capital 47.91,03,800 -
Proceeds from Preference Share Capital 1,67,70,03,000 -
Proceeds from shout-term borrowings, net 21,75,10,619 32,171
Repayment of long-tesn borgowings - -
Proceeds from Jong-term bosrowings 1,23,50,00,600 -
Net cash used in financing activities C 3,60,86,17,419 32,1m
Net increase/ (deerease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 65,85,404 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,849 2,849
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 65,88,263 2,849
Cash and cash equivalents comprises oft
Cash on hand 13,541 2,849
Balances with banls in current accounis 65,74,712 -

65,88,253 2,849

This s the Cash Flow Statement refered to in our seport of

even dafte.

Jior (5.5, Sai Babu & Associates
Chartesed Accouniants
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Gayauri Highways Private Limited

(Formerly Gayatti Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{All amounts in Tunless othetwise stated)

1. Nature of operations

3 Gayatri Highways Private Limited ~ GHPL (“the Company”) (Fotmerly Gayatri Domicile Private
Limited - GDPL) was incorporated during the year 2006 in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
1956, The (,ompany on its own and through its jointly controlled entities is in the business of construction,
operations and malatenance of carsiageways on toll and annuity basis pussuant to the dwclopment agreements
with the National and State Governments and makes investments in companies engaged in the construction,
operations and maintenance of roads, highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads. The registered office
of the Company is located in 6-3-1090, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
a} Note on Composite Scheme of Arrangement:
General

1.1 Gayatri Projects Limited (“the Transferee Company” or “the Demerged Company™ or “GPL”) is a public
limnited company incorporated on 15t September, 1989 under the provisions of the Act under the name
and style of “Andhra Coastal Constructions Private Limited”. The name was then changed to “Gayatr
Projects Private Limited” on 31% March, 1994, and subsequently on convetsion into a public limited
company the name was changed to its present name of “Gayatri Projects Limited”. The registered office
of the Demesged Company is situated at TSR Towers, B-1, 6-3-1090, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda,
Hyderabad, Telangana - 500082, India. The equity shares of the Demerged Company ate lmted on BSK
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

1.2 GPL is an infrastracture and construction company with a presence across the segment, and a special
foeus on road and irrigation projects. GPL has been executing construction ordess across the country over
last 50 years and owns almost all its equipment, enabling optimal cost control. Its two subsidiaries, Gayatti
Infta Ventuges Ltd (“GIVL”) and Gayatri Energy Ventuses Private Ltd ("GEVPL”), ate the Asset
Development agms for the Company. GIVL the road development arm and associate GPL, entities are
working on 6 operating and 1 undes-construction projects, adding up to gross capital employed in excess
of Rs. 5000 cr. GEVPL was set up to undestake powet genetation projects.

1.3 Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (“the Transfetor Company” or “GIVL”) is a company incotpotated on
220¢ Januagy, 2008 under the provisions of the Act having its registered office at 14 Floog, TSR Towers, 6-
3-1090, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hydetabad, KKurnool, Telangana - 500082 India. GIVL is a 70.59%
subsidiary of GPL, while the balance shateholding of 29.41% is held by AMP Capital Finance Mauritius
Limited. There is a definitive agreement in place between GPL and AMP Capital Finance Mauritins
Limited for the acquisition of the balance shareholding in GIVIL. Pursuant to the shate purchase, GIVL
would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPL

14 GIVLisa single holding company of the SPVs of BOT projects. Currently GIVL has portfolio of 6 BOT
projects, which compu ses of 4 annuity BOT projects and 2 toll BOT project. All the projects have
achieved their financial closure,

1.5 Gayati Domicile Private Limited (“the Resulting Company” or “GIDPL”) is a private limited company
incorporated on 28% December, 2006 undes the provisions of the Act having its repistered office at 1x
Toor, TSR Towers, 6-3-1090, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda Hyderabad, Telangana - 500082 India. The
Resulting Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPL.
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Gayatri Highways Private Limited

(Formetly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatoty Information
(ANl amounts in Tunless otherwise stated)

1.7

1.8

1.9

‘1491

1.9.2
1.9.3

1.10

1.11

1.11.1

Sai Maatarini Tollways Limited (“SMTL”) is a company incorporated on 8% September, 2011 under the
provisions of the Act having its registered office at 6-3-1090, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguds,
Hyderabad, Telangana - 500082 India. SM1L is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPL.

SM1L is a Special Purpose Company promoted by GPlL. GPL was geanted the contract from NHAL The
project involves Fout-Laning of Panikoili-Rimuli Section of NH-215 from Km.0.00 to Km.163.00 (Design
Length 166.173) in the State of Ogissa under NHDP Phase ~ 11X as BOT (Tol) project on Design,
Construction, Finance, Opetation and Maintenance under Private Public Partnetship on “DBFOT™ Basis.

This Composite Scheme of Arrangement provides for:

Transfer of investments in SMTI, from GPL to GDPL, and the consequent discharge of consideration by
GDPL 1o GPL

Post transfer of investments, merget of GIVL with GPL

Post merger of GIVIL with GPL, transfer of Infrastructure Road BOYT Asscts Business from the
Demerged Company to the Resulting Company and the consequent dischatge of consideration by the
Resulting Company to the Demerged Company, pusuant to the relevant provisions of the Act.

This Scheme also makes provision for various other matters consequential or related thereto and
otherwise integrally connected therewith.

Rationsale for the Scheme:

In order to achieve better management and to have clear focus on business operations, the management
of Demesged Company bas decided to demerge Infiastruciure Road BOT Assets Business, thereby
transferring Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business (as defined hereinafter) of GPL to GDDPL, in the
interests of maximizing overall shareholder value.

1.11.2 Therefore, with a view to effect such plan, the Board of Ditectors of Demesged Company and the

Resulting Company proposes that the Infrasttucture Road BOT Assets Business of the Demerged
Company be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on a going concern basis to be
undettaken through this Scheme (as defined hercinafter) under the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 read
with selevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, for such
consideration and in such manner as provided for in this Scheme (as defined hereinafter).

1.11.3 Accordingly, this Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

1.11.4

142

1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, has been proposed to provide for transfer of Infrastrncture Road
BOT Assets Business of the Denerged Company by way of demerger to the Resulting Company.

Upon the sanction of the Scheme by the High Court (as defined hereinafier) and the Composite Scheme
becoming effective on the Bffective Date (as defined hereinafter), the Infrastructure Road BOT Assets
Business of the Demerged Company shall stand transferred 1o, and be vested in, the Resulting Company
oy and from the Appointed Date for all mtent and purposes.

‘The Composite Scheme is divided into the following patts:
1921 Part A deals with the introductions and definitions;
1122 Part B deals with transfer of investtments in SMLT, from GPL to GDPL,
1123 Pact C deals with amalgamation of GIVL with GPL
1124 Part 1D deals with Transfer of Inlrastucture Road BOT Assets Business from GPL to GDPL
by way of demerger, i, all investments in Infrastructore Road BOT Assets of any nature
including investments in Gayated Jhansi Roadways Lid (“GIRL”), Gayatsi Lalitpur Roadways
Ld (“GLRL”), Hyderabad Expressways Ted (“HELY), Cyberabad Expressways Lad (“CIELY),
Indore Dewas Tolhways Lid (“IDTL?Y, Balaji Highways Holdings Pet Led (“BHITPL?), HKR
. Roadways Ltd (“FIKRRI) and all other intesest pertaining or relatable (o these investments in
- Infrastructure Road BOT Asscts Business and SRR
P VLE '_]?:ir_lj]_l‘l;dt_:als_ with the general tesms and conditions that will be applicable (0 1’f}j',l'§il§ CandDof. -
S the Sdieme P HURRTR T - o e R
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1.13 “Appointed Date” for the putpose of the amalgamation of GIVL with GPL as mentioned in Part C of
this Scheme, and Income Tax Act, 1961 means Apeil 1, 2016 or such other date as the Court or
National Company Law Tribunal, as the case may be, under Section 391 to 394 of the Act may direct or
approve;

1.14  “Appointed Date” for the purpose of transfer of Infiastructue Road BO'T Assets Business from GPLL
to GIDPL by way of demerger as mentioned in Part D of this Scheme, and Income Tax Act, 1961 means
March 31, 2017 ot such other date as the Coust ot National Company Law Tribunal, as the case may be,
under Section 391 to 394 of the Act may direct or approve;

115  “fffective Date” means the date on which the last of the consents, approvals, petmissions, resolutions
and orders as mentioned in Clause 31 shall be obtained or passed; or date on which the certified copy of
the Otder of the IHigh Court sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Hyderabad, Telangana; whichever is later.

Implication
‘I'he National Company Law Tribunal (INCLT) vide its order Nos.

a)  CP.(CAA) No.29/230/HDB/2017 under section 230 and section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
dated 3rd November, 2017 ~ in the matter of Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL),

b) CP.(CAA) No.30/230/HDB/2017 under section 230 and section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
dated 3rd November, 2017 — in the matter of Gayatti Mighways Private Litmited (GIHPL),

¢) CP.(CAA) No.31/230/HDB/2017 under section 230 and section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
dated 3rd Novembet, 2017 — in the matter of Gayatsi Infra Ventures Limited (GIVL),

approved the composite scheme of acrangement between Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL), Gayatii Infra
Ventutes Limited (GIVI), Gayatri Highways Private Litnited (GHPT) (“the Company™) (Formetly Gayatri
Domicile Private Limited), and their Respective Shascholdess.

Pugsuant to above said NCLT order with effect from 1st Apuil, 2016 fi.c., appointed date for teansfer of
Investments held in Sai Maatasini T'ollways Limited (SMTL) by Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL) to Gayatsd
Highways Private Limited (GHPL)), all the Rquity Investments in SMTL has been transferred from Gayatsi
Projects Limited to Gayatri Highways Private Limited for a consideration of an amount of
Rs.180,16,03,000/- Rupees One Hundred and Bighty Crores Sixteen Lakhs Three Thousand only} by
issuing 1,24,60,000 Equity Shases of Rs, 10 cach amounting to Rs. 12,46,00,000/- and 16,77,00,300
Redeemable Prefesence shares of Rs, 10 each amounting to Rs, 167,70,03,000/- to Gayatsi Projects Limited
by the Company.

Pursuant to above said NCLT Qrder with effect from 19 Apsil, 2016 [i.c, appointed date for amalgamation
of the Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (GIVLY with the Gayatti Projects Limited (GPL)], all the assets and
liabilities of the GIVL ate merged with the GPL and GIVL has stand dissolved withont going through
process of winding s,

Farther, as per the above said NCIT ordes with effect from 31st Maxch, 2017 [fi.e. appointed date {ox
Demerger of Tnfrasoructure BOT assets from Gayati Projects Limited to Gayatd Dighways Private
Limsited], all the assets and Habilitics pertaining to Infrastructure 3OY's has been transferred from Gayatri
Projects Limited to Gayatti Highways Private Limited for a consideration of an amount of Rs.
_ :35,45,03,800/~ (Rupees Thirty Five Crozes Forty Tive Lakhs Three Thousand Ilight Huadred only) by
dssuing:5,54,50,380 Tiquity Shares: of Rs. 30 each -ampunting to Rs. .35,45,03,800/- 10 Sharcholders of -

('ﬁ-;l}iatzx'i P{'c)j_c_:(;tg_’]_;imited §)}r_ l‘?}_c (3()_1;_1_13_:11))'.'3 I T P -';_,;'g:"n ;
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b)

Pussuant to above said NCLT order with effect from 31st March, 2017 the company will have two
subsidiarics namely, “Indore Dewas Tollways Limited (IDTL)” and “Sai Maatarini T'ollways Limited
(SMTILY” and five jointly controlled entities namely, “Gayatei Jhansi Roadways Limited (GJRL)”, “Gayatri
Lalitpur Roadways Limited (GLRL)”, “Hyderabad Expressways Limited (HEL)”, “Cyberabad Expressways
Limited (CEL)” and “HKR Roadways Limited (HKRRY)” and one associate “Balaji Highway Holdings
Private Limited (BHIPLY”. Since the subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled entities are accounted as
per the applicable Indian Accounting Standards, the company also has adopted the Indian Accounting
Stanclards.

Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

These financial statements ate prepared as per NCLT Order dated 3" November, 2017,
and it is for representation purpose and understanding of the stakeholders.

GHPI.’s management had previously issued its audited financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2016 on June 14, 2016 that were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptred
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Tndian GAAY?).

With effect from Aptil 1, 2016, the Company is required to prepare its financial statements under the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS?) psescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, Accordingly, the Company’s management has now prepared these
financial statements in compliance with Ind AS. These financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017 including comparative information are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
In prepating these financial statements under Ind AS, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared
as at April 01, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS. These financial statements comprise the Balance
Sheets as at March 31, 2017 and Masch 31, 2016, the Opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 (transition
date), the Statements of Profit and Loss, the Statements of Cash Flows and the Statements of Changes in
quity for the year ended March 31, 2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2016, and 2 supmumary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hercinafter referred to as
“Unconsolidated Ind AS Financial Statements™). Refer note 26 for information on how the Company has
adopted Ind AS. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an
accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (vefer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Agcounting treatment. given for the Composite Scheme approved by the NCLT in G L:

1) Transfer of ivestments in SMTL from GPL to GHPL:

With effect from 01.04.2016 [ie., appointed date for transfer of investments i SMTEL from GPL to
GHPL, all the Equity Investments in SMTL has been transferred from GPL to GHPL for a
consideration of an amount of Rs,180,16,03,000/- Rupees One Hundred and Eighty Croves Sixteen
Lakhs Three Thousand only) by issuing 1,24,60,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs.
12,46,00,000/- and 16,77,00,300 Redeemable Preference shages of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs.
167,70,03,000/ - to GPL by the Company. The Eauity Investments in SMTL is recorded at fair value
considering Net Assets Value of SMTL as on date of tansfer, which is Re. 179,40,47,807/- and the
eXCess comsdudmou paid is recognised as Goodwill in the books of GI4PL.

2y Amalgamation of GIVL with GPlL:

- With effeet from 19 April, 2016 [ic., appointed date for amalgamation of the Gayatil Infra Ventures
-+ Limjted (GIVL) with the Gayatsi Projects Limited (GPL)], all the assets and liabilities of the GIVIL. are
mes g,d \\ulh zllc (;P} fmd (Jl\’] lm stand dmoiwd wnhoul pomg t]nough 1}: occss of \wndmg up.
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", 3)  Transfer of Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business from GPL to GHPIL by way of demerger:

' With effect from 31st March, 2017 {i.e. appointed date for Demerger of Infrastrucrure BOT assets
from GPL to GHPL], all the assets and liabilities pertaining to Infrastructuore BOTs has been
transferred frorm GPL to GHPL fot a consideration of an amount of Rs. 35,45,03,800/- Rupees Thirty
Five Crores Forty Five Lakhs Three Thousand Bight IMundred ouly) by issuing 3,54,50,380 Hquity
Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 35,45,03,800/- to Shareholders of Gayatri Projects Limited by -
the Company. All assets and liabilittes transfereed from GPL to GHPL are recorded at book values
exist in the GPL as on date of transfer and the dilference between the Net Assets Value transfersed
from GPL and the consideration paid to shareholders of GPL is accounted as Capital Reserve in the
books of GHPIL.

CONSIDERATION

1.1 Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the Resulting Company GHPL (erstwhile GIDPL) shall, without
any further apphcatmn or deed, issue and allot to every member of the Demerped Company, holding
fully paid up equity shates in the Demerged Company and whose names appeat in the Register of
Members of the Demerged Company on the Record Date, in the following ratio (the “Share Fxchange
Ratio™):

* In respect of every 1 (One) equ;ty shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up held by such member in the
Deterged Company, 1 (One) equity shate in the Resulting Company of Rs 10/- each credited as fully

paid up,

1.2 The equity shares to be issued and allotted in terms hereof will be subject to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Resulting Company;

1.3 In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any

sharcholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prios to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a
transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on the Recosd Date, in order to
remove any difficulties arising to the Demerged or Resulting of equity shares in the Demesrged
Company, after the effectiveness of this Schenme. The New Tquity Shares to be issued by the Resulting
Company pursuant to this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of the Demerged Company which are
held in abeyance under the provisions of the Act or otherwise shall pending allotment or settlement of
dispute by ordesr of Court or otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Resulting Company.

14 Whete New Equity Shates are to be allotted to heirs, executors of administrators of, as the case may be,
to successors of deceased equity shateholders of the Demerged Company, the concerned heits,
executors, administrators or suceessors shall be obliged to produce evidence of title satisfactory to the
Board of Ditectors of the Resulting Conpany.

. 1.5 New Iiquity Shases issued in terms of the Scheme shall, in compliance with the applicable regulations,
be listed and/ or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange(s) in India where the cquity shares
of Resulting Company are listed and admitted to trading. The Resulting Company shall enter into such
artangements and give such confirmations and/or undertakings as may be necessary ir accordance with
the applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of such stock exchanges where the
shares / securities of the Resulting Company are listed. The New Fquity Shares allotted pursuant to this
Scheme shall remain feozen i the depositories systemn till selevant directions in relation to
listing/trading are provided by the relevant stock exchanges.

1.6 In so far as New IEquity Shares are concerned, the same will be distributed in dematesialized form to the
equity sharcholders of Demexged Company, psovided all details relating 1o the account with the
depository participant are available to Resulting Comypany. All those equity sharcholders who hold
cquity shares of Demesged Company and do not provide their details relating to the account with the
depository participant will be distributed New Bquity Shares in the physical/certificate formy unless
otherwise communicated in writing by the shareholders on or before such date as may be determined by
“the Board of Directors of Resulting Company or commitiee theteof.

.47 Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the New Hquity Shares of Resulting Company to be issued

o and allotted to the members of the Dunugui Lompany as provided in the Scheme shall he subject 1o
“the ]uowsmm of the munomndnm isf 7 fzqsocmizon and q;:idm ol association of: 1]1()3{\\ &#r}:*mpqny
“and the New, ")qm{y Shaies ‘shall '.s.'fi'hl;"';;:\ i -passu, fropy the date of allomment in 41 ; ':\_\hc




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

(Rormetly Gayatil Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Infotmnation
(Al amounts in Sunless otherwise stated)

i.8

1.9

1.10

5

b)

“compr e}lmu\m income, nfes csl mu)im. Is recor: dcd ussnp the e

existing equity shares of Resulting Company including entitlement in respect of dividends. The issue and
allotment of New Equity Shates by the Resulting Company to the members of the Demerged Company
as provided in this Scheme is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out
pursuant to the Act.

Approval of the Scheme by the sharcholders of Resulting Company shall be deemed 10 be due
compliance with the provisions of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant and
applicable provisions of the Act for the issue and allotment of shares by Resulting Company to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company, as provided m this Scheme.

If any sharcholder of the Demesged Company becomes entitled to any fractional shares, entitlernents or
credit on the issue and allotment of equity shares by the Resulting Company in accordance with Clause
24.1 of this Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Resuling Company shall consolidate all such
fractional entitlements and shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, issue and allot
such consolidated equity shares directly to an individual trust or a board of trustees or a cotporate
trustee nominated by the Rcwitmg Company (the “I'rustee’™), who shall bold such equity shates with all
additions or accretions thereto in trust fot the benefit of the respective shareholders, to whom they
belong and their tespective heirs, executors, administrators or successors for the specific purpose of
selling such equity shares in the market at such price or prices and on such lime ox times, as the Trustee
who shall hold the same as a trustee for and on behalf of such sharcholders of Demerged Company,
and shall dispose of the same and distribute the proceeds thereof to such shateholders in proportion to
and in licu of thelr respective fractional entitlements.

The Resulting Company shall, if necessary and to the extent required, increase / alter its Authorized
Share Capital to facilitate issue of New REquity Shares under this Scheme.

Current versus non-curtent classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cutrent/ non-cuttent
clagsification. A asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold in nogmal operating cycle;

. Held primarily for the purpose of teading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reposting pesiod; or

-Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Jiability for at least

twelve months after the reposting period,

All other assets are classified as non-curtent.

A liability is current when it is:
- Bxpected (o be settled in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the puspose of trading;
~ Due to be settled within twelve months after the repogting petiod; or
‘There is no unconditional sight to defer the settlement of the liability fos at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All ether Halilities are classified as non-current,

Defersed tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-carrent assets and liabilities. The Company has
identified twelve months as its opesating cycle,

Revenve recognition

Revenue s recognised to the extent that it is probable that the cconamic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regasdiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue s
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractuatly
defined tenms of ]}'1)?1))(‘!]( and ¢ ,\dndmp taxes or duties collected on bebalf of the government.
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d)

insteument or a shoster period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest tate, the company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Tnterest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Eammgs/ (loss) per share

Basic earnings per share is calenlated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shates outstanding during the year. For the purpose
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of equity shates outstanding duging the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shates.

Provisions and contingent liabilitics

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or consttuctive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of sresources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estitmate can be made of the amount of the obligation. I the effect of the
time value of money is matesial, psovisions are disconnted using a curzent pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time s recognised as a finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comptise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an otiginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Taxes

Income tax expense comptises of cutrent and defetred tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities i
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authotities in accordance with the
Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income ot in equity). Cugrent tax items are
recognised in correlation to the wnderdying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
petiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax renuns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations ate subject (o interpretation and establishes provision whese appropiiate.

Deferred tax is provided vsing the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and Labilities and theit carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferved tax
liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Defersed tax assets are recogpised for all deductible temporary differences, the canty forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax Josses, Deferred tax assets are recoghised 1o the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
upused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The cassying amounnt of deferced tax assets is reviewed ar cach reposting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no Jongesr probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow afl or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Ungecopnised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reposting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that futuge taxable profits will allow the defesred tax
asset 1o be recovered,

Defersed tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when

- the asset ds realised or the Jiability ds settled, based on (ax sates and tax Jaws that have been enacted ot
g _.sub%l'\u(lvdy umtlcd atth
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g) Financial instruments
; A financial instrument is any conttact that gives tise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

A) Financial Asset

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, it the case of [inancial assets not recorded at
fait value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases ot sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a tine frame established by
regulation of convention in the market place (repular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the
date that the Company commits to purchase ot sell the asset.

Subsequent measutement

Fos purposes of subsequent measnrement, financial asscts ate classified in four categoties:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- Debt instruments, detivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
Liquity instraments measured at fair valae through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following coaditions are met:

a.  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b, Conttactual tesms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPE) on the principal amount outstanding,

This categosy is the most relevant to the Company. After inital measutement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective intesest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is inchaded in finance income in the profit or loss, The
losses avising {rom impaitment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applics to trade
receivables and loans

Equity investments:

All equity investments in jointly controlled entities are measured at cost less divunution other than
temporary. All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Jquity investments
which ate held for tading are classified as FVIPL. For all other cquity investments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election o present in QCI subsequent changes in fair value, The Company makes such
clection on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification Js made on initial recogniton and is
irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classily an equity instrument as at FYOCI, then all fair value changes on the
istrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in OCIL There is no reeyeling of amounts from OCT to
P&L, even on sale oi' investment. Bquity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the P&l

'--Demmgmuon
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: b. the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and (1) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (i) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement

and recognition of impairment loss on debt instruments.
B) Financial Liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value throuph profit ot
loss, loans and borrowings, payables as appropeiate. All financial liabilities are recoguised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of ditectly atizibutable transaction costs,
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and botrowings including bank
overdrafis, and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
‘T'he measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Pinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
tecognition as at fair value through profit or foss.

Loans and bosrowings ,

This is the category most selevant to the Company. After initial recognition, intesest-hearing loans and
borsowings ate subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitics ate derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the BIR. ‘The BIR amostisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and Joss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Hinancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contacts that sequite a payment to be made
to reimbusse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
it accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initally as a
lisbility at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that age disectly attributable to the issuance of the
guatantee. Subsequently, the Jiability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance detesmined
as per impairment sequirements of Jnd AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ox
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
diffesent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a pew liability,
‘The diffesence in the respective carsying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit of joss.

Reclassificaiion of financial assets

The Comp’my determines chssification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. Aftes initial

recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are cc;miy instruments and financial
Jiabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a geclassification is made only if there is a change
i in 1110 busme.ﬂ.a modc] fm :mmgmgj those assets, ]f ihc Comp'my ;echxssﬁu ﬂmnm} pEL le:_ it qpplm the |




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

(Formerly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

3 Pioperty, plant and equipment

Computer and
related Total
equipment

Office
equipment

Gross block

As at 1 April 2015 - - -
Additions during the year - - -
As at 1 April 2016 - - -
Additions duting the year 1,61,999 9,471,539 11,03,538
As at 31 March 2017 1,61,999 9,41,539 11,03,538

Accumulated depreciation
Up 10 1 April 2015 - - -
Chatge for the year - - -
Up to 31 March 2016 - - -
Charge for the year 1,61,999 9,41,539 11,03,538
Up to 31 March 2017 1,631,999 9,41,539 11,03,538

Net block

As at 31 March 2017 - - -
As at 31 March 2016 - - -
As at 31 March 2015 - - N

4 Investments

As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 Apuail 2015

a) Non-current investments
Unguoted
Investments cagried at cost
Investments in equity insttuments of Subsidiaties
33,340 (2016: 16,680; 2015: 16,680) equity shases 3,33,400 -
of T10 cach fully paid-up in Indore Dewas
Tollways Limited.
1,717,642 (2016: 510,647; 2015: 510,647} equily 1,71,76,420
shates of Y10 each fully paidup in HER
Roadways Limited.
Investments in equity insttuments of jointly controlled entities
990,000 (2016: 990,000, 2015: 990,000) equity 22,38,47,043 - : -
shares of 10 each fully paid-up in Myderabad
Eapressways Limited. _
396,000 (2016 990,000, 2015:990,0600) equity 5,92.07,575 - . -
‘shares of T10 each fully paid- up in (,ybufnb,:d - :
]fa)\])]'(l'i‘;\\?r\)“u Limited. T :
Nil :(2016 4,936, bS(J 2015 49%6 8%0) ((mty ST




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

(llormerly Gayatei Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

4(a) Non-current investments (Continued...)
21,619,994 (2016: 21,619,994; 2015: 21,619,994) 38,28,94,659 - .
equity shares of T10 each fully paid-up in
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited,
16,218,000 (2016: 16,218,000; 2015: 16,218,000 28,95,64,494 - -
equity shates of T10 each fully paid-up in
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited.
1,24,60,000 (2016: 1,24,60,000; 2015: 0) equity
shates of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Sal Matarini
Tollways Limited 1,79,40,47,807 - -

Investments in Associates

49,000 (2016: Nil; 2015: Nil) equity shares of 4,90,000 : - .
T10 each fully paid-up in DBalaji Highway

Holdings Private Limited.

Investments in compulsorily convertible
debentures of jointly controlled entities

8,550,000 (2016: 21,375,000; 2015  Nil) 8,55,00,000 - )
debentures of 10 each fully paidup in
Cyberabad Expressways Limited.

Total non-current investments 2,85,30,61,398 - -
Less: Investments held for sale - - -
Net value of non-current investinents 2,85,30,61,398 - -

2.85,30,61,398 - -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Note: The above Investments are tecotded as per NCLT order dated 3rd November, 2017, which is effective
from 24th November, 2017 and it is disclosed for representation purpose and understanding of the

stalkeholders.




Gayatti Highways Private Limited
(Rormetly Gayatei Domicile Private Limited)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information

x (Al amounts in T unless otherwise stated)
5 Loans
As at
31 March 2017 31 Match 2016 1 April 2015
Non-curfent
{Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related pasties
Joans to Subsidiaty 6,11,52,013 - -
-Loans to jointly controlled entities 86,93,44,562 - -
93,04,96,575 - -
Cuirent
{Unsecured, consideted good)
Loans to related partics
-Loans to jointly controlled entities 23,64,78,663 -
23,64,78,663 - -
Cash and cash cquivalents
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Balances with banks
- On cufrent Acconnls 65,714,712 - .
Cash on hand 13,541 2,849 2,849
65,88,253 2,84% 2,849
Other Current Agsets
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 Apuril 2015
(a) Miscellaneous Bapenditure 1o the extent not
wiitten off 1,91,200 1,91,200 1,91,200
(1) Pre-operative Fapenditure 48,080 48,080 48,080
2,39,280 2,39,280 2,39,280
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Gayatri Higlvays Private Limited

(Formerdy Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)

Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(Al amcunts in T unless otherwise stated)

9 Other equity

As at
31 March 2617 31 Marcch 2016 1 April 2015
‘ Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve generated on demetger of
Infragtructure BOT assats from GPL to
GIHYI. 24,35,25,505 - -
Retained carnings
Balance as per Jast audited financial
statements (70,126) (37,955) -
Add: Loss for the year (23,592) (32,171) -
Add: Finaacial guatantee givers an behalf of - - -
bolding company
Balance at the end of the year (93,718) (70,126) (37,955)
Total other equity 24,34,31,787 (70,126) (37,955)
10 Borrowings
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 20160 1 April 2015
(a) Non-cosrent botrowings
Ferm loans
Unsecured
From related patty - - -
Iirom othets 1,23,50,00,000 - -
Less: Curtent matutities of long-term
borrowings (refer note 12) - - -
1,23,50,00,000 - -
{I) Shott-term borrowing
Loans repayable on demand
Unsecured
From telated party 21,74,177,704 . -
From Qthers 1,41,79% 1,068,884 76,713
21,76,19,503 1,08,884 76,733

i) Tesm loans from others aggregating to [11,235,000,000 (31 March 2016: Nil; 31 March 2015: Nil) is seeured
; : by way of;
() pledge of 1,180,555 Yquity shares held by the company, M/s Gayaui Projects Lid, providing a mininns
cover of twice the facility amount;
(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatti Projects Limited;
(©) prrsona) guarantee of Me TV Sandeep Kumar Reddy; and
() demand promissory note.
i) Terms of repayment

Agat
31 Magch 2017 31 Magch 2016 1 April 2015
Up 1o 1 year - - .
210 5 years 1,23,50,00,000 - -
Above 5 years . - -
1,23,50,00,000 - -
i) The above ﬁu‘,i]hics carry an annual interesl rate of 15% (31 March 2016: 36% and 31 Masch 2015: 16%).

-iv) ]mn covrnfum G . :
U Bank doans confain certain information covenants selating 1o xubmsasnon of audited financial statements .
'wnhm spcuﬁLd e ])cnod ,lmi qtmrwr]y npdawa on opemsic)m of éhe umly llu wmp,my h.u; H:Hl\:rl‘d 'lI]_ AN




Gayatti Highways Private Limited

(Formerly Gayatei Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

11 (a) Trade payables age non-interest bearing and ate normally settled within 90 days
(b) The identification of micro, stnall and medium enterprise suppliers as defined under the
provisions of “Micro, small and medium enterprises Act, 2006” is based on Management’s
knowledge of their status. Thete are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as on 31

March 2017 or 31 March 2016 or 1 April 2015.

12 Other financial Jiabilities
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 Aprif 2015
At amortised cost
Current matutities of long-term - - -
bosrowings {refer note 10)
Creditors for expenses 1,06,57,404 ~ -
Interest accrued but not due on
botrowings 4,68,48,504 - -
Financial guarantee 10,74,94,677 - -
16,50,00,585 - -
13  Other Current liabilities
As at
31 March 2017 31 Mazch 2016 1 April 2015
Statutory liabilities - 2,03,00,268 - -
Short Term Provisions 3,000 3,371 3,371
2,03,03,268 3,371 3,371
14 Other expenses
Yor the year ended
31 Match 2017 31 March 2016
Rates and taxes 17,915 28,800
Bank Charges 2,677
Auditor's remunetation (sefer note
below) 3,000 3,371
23,592 32,171
Auditor's remuneration
For the year ended
31 Martch 2017 31 March 2016
-as auditoy 3,000 3,37
3,000 3,371




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

Formesly Gayatti Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounis in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

15 Income taxes
The following table provides the details of income tax assets

As at
31 March 2017 31 Matrch 2016 1 April 2015
Advance tax, net of provision _ 33,54,381 - -
33,54,381 - .

16 Breakup of financial assets and financial liabilitics carried at amortized cost

As at

31 Mazrch 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
IFinancial assets
Trade receivables - - -
Cash and cash equivalents £5,88,253 2,849 2,849
Loans 1,16,69,75,238
Total 1,17,35,63,491 2,849 2,849
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,45,26,19,503 1,08,884 76,713
Trade payables 1,11,800 - -
Other financial labilities 16,50,00,585 -
Total 1,61,77,31,888 1,08,884 76,713

17 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the seported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Habilities and the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the catrying amount of assets or
liabilitics affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant fisk of causing & material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial yeas, are described below, The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on pacameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing ciscumstances and assumiptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are

beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occut.
Recoverability of investments in jointly controlled entities and fellow subsidiarics

The Investments of the Company includes investments made in equity shares of jointly controlled entities and

fellow subsidiaries amounting to [0 1,046,287 041 and advances receivable from these entitics as on 31 March

2017 _amounting 1o [11,165,906,073 appeasing in loans, On the basis of status of operations, continuous

."mppoll fJ om Emdus fmd 1hc fnlmc ".bﬂil“y OI these cm.m(,s to opv gate in, pmm nwmgmmcnl estinates that
M""»w e

]ﬁ ,';]:‘n.\l‘;]
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Gayatri Highways Private Limited
(Formerly Gayawi Domicile Private Limited)
Summatry of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatoty Information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)
18 Fair Values
The manapement assessed that cash and cash equivalents, teade receivables, loans, trade

payables, borrowings, othes financial liabilities apptroximate their casrying amounts largely due to

the short-term matutities of these inststuments or as they carry matket tate of interest.
19 Finauncial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprises of loans and botrowings, trade and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to provide guasantees to support its operations. ‘The Company’s principal
financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other seceivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that desive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market tisk, credit risk and lquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these rsks. The senior management provides
assurance to the Company’s Board of Directors that the Company’s financial tisk activities ase
governed by appropriate policies and proceduses and that financial risks are identified, measured
and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for manaping each of these risks, which are sumunarised
below:

a) Macket Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of sisk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial insttuments
affected by market tisk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in masket interest rates. The Company’s exposute to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations
with floating interest tates.

b)Y Credit risk
Credit sisk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrament
or customer contract, leading to » financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
financial instruments in the form of loans to jointly controlled entities, fellow subsidiaries and
others,

¢} Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital,
share premium and all other equity seserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is (o maximise the sharcholder value. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments i light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. 'To maintain o adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital fo
shareholdets or issué_he\v shares. ‘The Company monifors capital U%;ing a gearing tatio, which js
apital plus net debr. S e

net c]'ébt:'div'idcﬂ by _t.Qfal &




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

(Formetly Gayatii Domicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{(All amounts in (1 unless otherwise stated)

20 Contingent liabifitics

As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Disputed income tax dues 8,92,926 -
Pledge of equity shares held in jointly
controlled entities for loans talken by

them
Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited 1,24,62,97,646 -
Gayatsi Lalitpur Roadways Limited 92,12,48,174 -
HIKR Roadways Limited 1,57,79,09,300 -

Corporate guarantee given to
lenders of Indore Dewas
‘T'oliway Limited 6,26,13,00,000 -

The Company has extended cestain corporate guarantees to the lenders of the group entities
accordance with the contractual terms entered into with them. The management, on the basis

in

of

assessment of the nature of business activities catried on, is of the view that the provisions of Section
186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company as it does get classified as a Company cartying on

“Infrastructural Projects” as defined in Schedule VI to the Act.

21 Related party disclosures
a) Name of related parties and nature of relationship

Name of the related partty Nature of relationship

Sai Matarini Toliways Limited

.. Wholly owned Subsidiaries
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited Associate

Gayatri fhansi Roadways Limited
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Hyderabad Expressways Limited Jointly controlled entities
Cyberabad Yixpressways Limited
HER Roadways 1imited




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

_ (Formerly Gayatri Domicile Private Eimited)

v Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(ANl amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

22 First-time adoption of Ind AS

i These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the furst the Company has prepared in
L accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
prepated its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with patageaph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian
GAAD),

Accordingly, the Company has prepated financial statemeants which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31
March 2016, as descsibed in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 Apgil 2015, the Company’s date of
transition to Ind AS. This note explains the pincipal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at T Apeil 2015 and the financial statements
as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2016,

Exemptions availed:
Set out below ate the applicable Ind AS 101 exemptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS:

Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value of all property, plant and
equipinent as recognised in the financial statements as on the date pf transition o Ind A8, measured as per
previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of tansition after making necessary adjusunent
to de-commissiong labites. :

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at theix previous
GAAY castying values.

a. Fair valuation of interest free loans given to jointly controlled entities

Undet previous GAAP, the loans given to jointly controlled entities are tecorded at transaction vatue, Under
Ind AS, all financial asscts are requited to be recognised at fait value, Accordingly the Company has fai
valued these loans under Ind AS. The difference between the catrying value and the fair value on the date of
teansaction has been treated as investment made in the jointy controlled entities and finance income on these
loans from the date of tansaction 1l the date of transition has been treated as an increase in Retained
cagnings as on date of transition e, T Apsil 2015, Further, the finance income for the year ended 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income in the Statement of Profit and Loss for respective financial

YORLS.

1. Fair valuation of interest free foans given 1o fellow subsidiaties

Under previous GAAP, the loans given to fellow subsidiaties are recorded at transaction value. Under Ind
AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued
these Joans under Ind AS. The difference beoween the carying value and the fair value on the date of
transaction has been treated as dividend paid to Holding Company .. Gayatii Projects Limited and finance
income on these loans from the date of transaction till the date of ransition has been treated as an increase in
Retained earnings as on date of transition L.e. 1 April 2015, Juither, the finance income for the yeas ended 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2017 is weated as an income in the Stalement of Profit and Loss for respective
financial yeass.




Gayatzi Highways Private Limited

(Fotmerly Gayaui DDomicile Private Limited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

Note on Fitst-time adoption of Ind AS

c. Fair valuation of financial guarantee given to lenders of jointly controlled entitics

Under previous GAAP, the financial guarantees piven to lenders of joindy controlled entities wese shoven as
Contingent liabilities in the notes to financial statements and the same were not recorded. Under Ind AS, all
financial puarantee contiacts are required to be tecognised as financial liability at the time of issuance of such
guarantee, The financial Hability has been recorded at its fair value initially and subsequently recorded at
higher of amount recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 or initially tecopnised amount less amortisation.
of fair value, In case of the financial goatantees given to lenders of jointly controlled entities with no
compensation, the fair value is recorded as patt of cost of investment made in that jointly controlled entity.
The fair value is measuted at the present vatue of the guatanitee commission income over the cffective period
of the guarantee. The guarantee commission income from the date of guarantee 1l the date of transition has
been treafed as an increase in Retained earnings as on date of transition ie. 1 April 2015. Fusther, the
financial puarantee income for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for respective financial years.

d. Fair valuation of financial guarantee given to lenders fellow subsidiary

Under previous GAAP, the financial guarantees given to lenders of fellow subsidiaties wese shown as
Contingent labilities in the notes to financial statements and the same wete vot recorded. Under Ind AS, alt
financial guatantee contracts ate required to be secognised as financial lability at the time of issuance of such
guarantee. The financial lability has been tecorded at its fair value initially and subsequently recorded at
hipher of amount recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 or initially recognised amount less amortisation.
of fair value. In case of the financial guarantees given to lenders of fellow subsidiazies with no compensation,
the fair value is recorded as dividend paid to the Holding Company. The fair value is measured at the present
value of the puarantee comumission income over the effeciive pesiod of the guarantee. The guarantee
commission income from the date of guatantee (il the date of transition has been treated as an increase in
Retained carnings as on date of transition ie. § April 2015, Further, the financial guarantee income for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income ig the Statement of Profit and Loss for
respective financial veags,

e. Loss on account of sale of investments in jointly controlled entity

Under previous GAAP, the Joans given to jointly controlled entity ate recorded at transaction value and the
curtent investments age shows at lower of cost and net realisable value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are
required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued the loan given to its jointly
controlled entity - Cyberabad Expressways Limited (CHL) under Ind AS. The difference between the
cateying value and the fair value on the date of transaction has been treated as investment made in the jointly
controlied entity.

The Company has recorded additional loss on account of imputation of inferest on interest free loans given
to Cyberabad Expressways Limited,

23 Speeified bank notes (SBN)

Qiher
SBNs denomination Total
nees

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November
2014 : - 2,849 2,849
() Pesmitted seceipts - - -
() Permitted payments S - : - ' -
- Closing cash in hand as on 30 Decembes R T A i
2016 SEP S 2849 0 2,845 R




Gayati Highways Private Limited

{Formetly Gayattl Domicile Private Limited)

Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatoty Information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

24 The Company’s principal objectives awe to provide infrastructural facilities either on its own ox through

25

26

incorporating and investing in special purpose vebicles. Consequently, the Company has significant
investments in its jointly controlled companies and other entities. On the basis of assessment of the natuze of
business of the Company, duly supposted by an independent opinion from an expert, the management is of
the view that the Company is not a Non banlking financial institation under the provisions of Section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

The Company has been incurting opetating losses duting the past few years and the current liabilities of the
Company exceeds its cutrent assets, This matter s raising substantial doubt on Company's ability to continue
as & going concern in foreseeable future. Notwithstanding the above, the accompanying financial statements
has been prepated on going concern basis as the holding company has guaranteed suppost to the Company
and management believes that the jointly controlled entities will generate sufficient cash flows to support the
Company.

Segment teporting

Based on the Company's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management,
the Company has identified only one repostable segment ie. "constiuction, operations and maintenance of
roads, highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads”

This 15 the Summary of Siguificant
Accounting  Policies  and  Other
Explanatory Infotmation referred to in
our repott of even date

For G.S. Sai Babu & éf@gﬁ’(_zia' For and on behalf of Board of directors of

o

oy

Chartered Accountangs

-

T/ Sarita Reddy Purnachandra Rao
Jirector Disector

Sayta Sat
Proprictor

M.No.208341 DIN: 000017122 [ DIN:02230190

Place: Hyderalad

Date: 2"”{ e 20 %,;}




To
GAYATRI DOMICILE PRIVATE LIMITED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

the Members of GAYATRI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED (Fotmerly

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gayatri I-Iighways
Ptivate Limited (‘the Iloldmgj Company’) (Fosmesly C:ayam Domicile Private Limited) and its
subsidiaties, associate and joint ventures, which comptise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Hquity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory infermation. These consolidated  financial
statements are prepated as per NCLT Order dated 3td November, 2017, and it is for
representation purpose and understanding of the stakeholders.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in teems of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affaits (consolidated
financial position), consolidated profit or loss (consolidated financial performance
including other comptehensive income), conselidated cash flows and consolidated changes
in equity of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventuses in
accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standacds (Ind AS) specified undet Section 133 of the Act. The Holding
Company's Board of Ditectors and the respective Board of Ditectors of the joint ventures
ate responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and presentaion of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and ate free from material misstaternent, whether due to frand or error. Fuxther, in
terms of the pmvmons of the Act, the tespective Board of Directors of the Holdmg
Company and its joint venture compamu covered under the Act are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safegoarding the assets and for ;n‘evonrjng and detecting {rauds and other irregu}fu‘iti(,s;
sclection and application of apps <>pmtc accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are seasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maiutenance of adequate
intesnal financial controls, that were operating effectively for enswiing the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recosds, relevant to the preparation and preseatation of the
financial statements that pive a true and {alr view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due o fraud or crros. These financial statements have been vsed for the purpose of
prepasation of the consolidated financial statements by the Dicectors of the Holding Company,
as afosesaid.




Avditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit,

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to he included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereundet.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section. 143{10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, The proceduges selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated {inancial statements, whether due to fravd or eveor. In maling those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in ocder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the ciscumstances. An audit
also includes evalnating the approptiateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonablevess of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of
Ditectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the

.other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 9 of the Other Matters
patagtaph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our avdit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and on the other financial information of the joint ventures, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
mannetr so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated
financial position) of the Holding Company and its joint ventures as at 31 Magch 2017, and
their consolidated profit  (consolidated financial  performance including  other
comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not andit the financial statemenis of two subsidiarics, one associte and five joint
ventores, in which the Company’s share of loss aggregated 1o 569,376,971 for the year uadcd
31 March 2017, as consideted in the consolidaied financial statements. These financial
statements have been andited by other aunditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated [inancial statements, in so far as it relates o
the amounts and disclosutes inchaded in respect of these joint ventures, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Saction 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint ventuses,
is_ bzl_scd so_lt_‘.}y on the reports of the other anditors,

_.()m opmmn flbovv on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other

'],'L‘?ll};ll(Jl)’ J(’t]l].ll(.ﬂl(.!ltﬁ betow, are. not modified in tespect of the a JO\VL maters \\/PL&-!‘;' T

:{onc b) and the 1eposts of the othes qudnma




10. The company had required to prepate separate sets of consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 Marclh 2015 as this is the fitst year 1t is applicable Our Opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other anditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of
the joint ventures, we teport, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and except as discussed in paragraph 11(g)(v), obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the afosesaid consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as requited by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other anditors;

¢} The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this repott are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements;

d) in oug opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the ditectors of the Holding
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reportts of the other statutory auditors of its joint venture companies covered under the Act,
none of the directors of the Holding Company and its joint venture companies covered
under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls ovet financial reposting of the
Holding Company and joint ventare companies covered under the Act and the opetating
effectivencss of such controls, refer to ous sepavale report in ‘Anoexure I’ and

g)  With respect to the othes matters to be included in the Aunditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in ovr opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the repost of the other auditors on separate financial statements as
also the other financial information of the joint ventures:

@) The consolidated financial statements disclose. the impact of pending litigatons on
the consolidated fnancial position of the Holding company and jts joint ventures as
detailed in Note 26 te the consolidated {inancial statemaents;

(i) The Holding Company and its foint ventures did not have any long-tenm contracts
including desivative contracts for which there were any matesial foreseeable logses;

‘(i) There wege no amounts which wese sequired to be transferred to the Investos
w Do Bdueation and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its._joint \f/mw.cm\
e omjﬂmcs covered under tho Acl during [he yc'fu ended 31 anch ?O] 75 angdrg v




(iv) These consolidated financial statements have made requisite disclosures in Note 31
as to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes during the period from
8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 by the Holding Company covered under
the Act. However, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
to feport on whether the disclosuses are in z2ccordance with the books of account
maintained by the Holding Company.

) the Company, during the year has received NCLT order vide dated 31d November
2017 approving Composite scheme of amrangement between Gayatti Projects
Limited, Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited, Gayattd Highways Private Limited and
their respective Shareholders, accordingly the consolidated financial statemenss ace
prepared consideting the effect of the said order.

For G.S.SAI BABU & ASSQCIATES
Chartered Accountants o
Firm’s Registration No.: 01 420’7@

i

1

Proprictor

Membership No: 208341

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 2he 1o 28 %’F%
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Annexure I to the Independent Audiior’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatyi
Highways Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Gayatni Highways Private
Limited (‘the Holding Company’), and its joint ventures as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017,
we have andited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (TFCol'R’) of the Holding
Company and joint venture comnpanies, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Ditectors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaties, associate and joint
venture companies, which ate companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over finaneial reporting criteria
established by the Company consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chastered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internat financial controls that wete operating effectively for ensuring the
osderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to the company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accutacy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, s required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the MHolding Company and its joint
venitute companics, as aforesaid, based on our andit. We conducted our audit in accosdance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) and deemed
to be prescribed under Sectdon 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of INCoFR, and
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {‘the Guidance
Note’) issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note tequire that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR wete established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the TFCoFR
and their opetating cffectiveness, Our andit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of
CoFR, assessing the isk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, inclading the assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the andit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of thelr reports teferted to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropuiate o provide a basis for our andit opinion on the IFCol'R of the Holding Company, and its
jolnt venture companics as aforesaid.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting

A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reposting and the preparation of financial statements for external pusposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCol'R include those policies and procedures
that (1) pectain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairty reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2) provide reasonable assusance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepatation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that geceipts and expenditures of the company ate being
made only in accordance with avthorisations of management and ditectors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unanthorised acquisition, use,
ot disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Jimitations of IFColR, induding the possibility of collusion ot improper
management override of controfs, matetial misstatements due to error or fraud tay occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evalnation of the IFCoIR to future periods are subject to the risk
that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedutes may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on IFCoFR of
the joint venture companies, the Holding Company and its joint venture companics, which ate
cotnpanies coveted under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reposting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its joint
venture companies, consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chastered Accountants of India,

Other Matters

We did not audit the IFCoFR in so far as it relates to four joint venture companies, which are
Companies covered under the Act, in which the Company’s shate of profit aggregated to ¥17,069,903
for the year ended 31 March 2017, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, "The IFCoFR
in so far as it relates to such joint veature companies have been audited by other auditors whose
repotts have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and operating
effectivencess of the IFCol'R for the Iolding Company and its joint ventute companies, as aforesaid,
under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such joint venture companies is based solely
on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
with respect to out reliance on the work done by and on the reposts of the other anditors.

For G.S.SAT BABU & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants o
Firm’s Regislmlio&t\lo.:

il » {(}g \g‘f‘@i‘ :
SATYA SAI BARE GURRAN
Proprictor

Places M yderabad

o Date 2

Yy




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

{Formetly Gayatsi Domicile Private Limited)

‘ Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017
(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

As at
Notes = Riarch 2007 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Assets
WNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 32,17,751 - -
Intangible Assets
- Goodwill 20 50,99,20,882 - -
- under SCA 7 8,09,55,04,478 - .
- Intangible assets under development 7 17.,31,45,76,7(07 - -
Financial assets
- Investinents 8 48,96,68,688 ‘ - "
- Loans 9 86,93,44,562 - -
Other Non-Current Assets i0 15,18,45,522 - -
Income tax assets, net 21 14,15,62,847 - -

27,54,56,41,438 - -
Current assets
Financial assets
« Cash and cash equivalents 11 42.72,49,543 2,849 2,849
- Loans 9 23,64,78,663 - -
Other Current Asscts 12 6,60,68,522 2,39,280 2,39 280

72,97,96,728 2,42,129 242,129

Total assets 28,27,54,38,160 2,42,129 2,42,129
Equity and labilities
Bty
Tiquity share capital 13 47,93,03,800 2,00,000 2,00,000
Prefetence share capital 13 1,67,70,03,000 - -
Other equity 14 (32,59,45,184) (70,120) (37,955)
Total Equity 1,83,03,61,616 1,29,874 1,62,045
Non-cnerent Liabilities
Financiat liabilities
- Bosrowings 15(r) 21,96,84,44,158 -
Other Non-Current Liahilities 16 3,22,37,95,616 - -
Current labilities
Financial liabilities
-Shost-tem botrowings 15() 21,76,19,503 1,08,884 76,713
~Trade payables 16 1,56,26,616 - -
~Other financial Habilitics 17 27,49,33,521 - -
Oilier cuwent liabilities 18 74,46,57,137 3,371 3,371
Total liabilities 26,44,50,76,550 1,12,255 £0,084
Total equity and liahilitics 28,27,54,38,166 2,42.129 2,42,129

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of the {inancial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet reforred o in our seport
of even date.

Yor G.8, Sai Babu & Assogin
Chastered Accountants {%‘;/
Firm Repan, No OM?,O?S{ “ay,

Yor and on behalf of Board of directors of

~Sayta Sal BabuBurtam 6T, » T Sarita Reddy. P Pournachandra Rao
: L Proprietor C- Directos - Director

o ‘M.No.:208341 CIDING 000017122 IDIN02230190 7 )
¥ L -




Gayatri Highways Private Limited

Formerly Gayatti Domicile Private Limdted)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Notes

31 Marcl: 2017 31 Masch 2016
Other income - -
Construction income 6,76,23,48,523
Total income 6,76,23,48,523 -
Expenses
Construction Expenses 6,76,23,48 523
Employee benefits expense . .
Finance costs - .
Depreciation expense G(a) - -
Other expenses 19 3,89,060 32,171
Total expense 6,76,27,37,583 32,171
Loss before exceptional items and tax (3,89,060) (32,171)
Exceptional item - .
L.oss before tax {3,89,060) (32,171)
Current tax . B
Loss for the year (3,89,060) (32,171
Other comprehensive income - -
Share of profits/ {losses) in the Jointy
contiolled entities (56,90,11,503) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (56,94,00,563) (32,171)
Larnings per equity share (EPIES)
Basic (11.88) (1.61)
Diluted (2.64) (1.61)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss
Jf(,’f?ﬂl'l'(’ld to in our 1'(‘.;')0],'[‘ of even dat{‘l.

For G.8. Sai Babu & Associates For and on behalf of Board of ditectors of
o Gayatj Highways Private Limited

( ( , &wﬁ in g

T, Sarita Reddy P Pumachandra Rao
Dircctor _ Director
DIN: 000017122 DIN:02230190

Chartered Accountants

Fizm Rc‘.gn.(l\g: 0142098 o
o f

Sayta Sai B b Gurr
Proprictor

MNo. 208341

Piace: Myderabad
Date: ‘Q__E?w-} Lo Y0




yayatti Highways Private Limited
(Formerly Gayatri Domicile Private Linited)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Al amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

(2) Share capital

Numbex Amount
(i) Equity Share capital
Equity shares of T10 each issued, subsciibed and fully paid
Avl Apidl 2015 20,000 2,00,000
At 31 March 2016 20,000 2,00,000
At 31 Match 2017 4,79,30,380 47,93,03,800

(ii) Preference Share capital
Redeemable Preference shates of $10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At Apsil 2015 - .
At 31 March 2016 - -
Ar31 March 2017 16,77,00,300 1,67,70,03,000

Note: The above capital structure is post NCLT order dated 3rd November, 2017, which is effective
from 24th November, 2017 and it is disclosed for representation purpose and understanding of the
stakeholders.

(b) Other equity

Capital Reserve Remf“m Total equity
earnings

Balance as of 1 Apsil 2015 - (37,955) (37,955)
Loss for the yeas - (32,171) (32,171
Other comprehensive income - - .
Add: PFinancial guarantee  given on
ehalf of holding company . - -
Balance as of 31 March 2016 - (70,126) {70,120}
Balance as of 1 April 2016 - (76,126) (70,126)
Toss for the year - (56,94,00,563) (56,94,00,563)
Add: Capital Reserve generated on
demerger of Infrastructure BOY agsets
ftom GPL 1o GHPL 24,35,25,505 - 24,35,25,505
Other comprehensive income ‘ - - -
Balance as of 31 March 2017 24,35,25,605 (56,94,70,659) (32,59,45,184)
This is the Statement of Changes in
Haquity refessed to in our report of even
date.
For (.8, Sai Babu & Assogiaigs— ™ For and on behalf of Board of divectors of
Chartered Accountants Gaya i Jighways Pri

o
-

Ji
i/

" Barita Reddy B ALutnachandra Rao

Sayta Sai Ral
e Proprietos:
o MMNEA208341

{

) .f'-___'.Di]:_éé:__l(_i]: L i Direetor
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Gayatri Highways Private Limited

{Bormerly Gayatri Domicile Private Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 Masch 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {3,89,060) (32,171)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation expense

Interest income and financial guarantee income
Loss on sale of investnients -

T.oss on Consolidation {56,90,11,503)

Interest expense . -
Operating loss before wotking capital changes {56,94,00,503) (32,171)
Changes in working capitak:

Increase in trade payables 1,56,26,616 -
Increase/(decrease) in other non-corrent liabilities 3,22,%7.95,616 -
Increase/ (decrease) in other current linbilities 1,01,95,87,287 -
Increase/{decrense) in other non-curtent assets (15,18,45,522) -
Increase/{decrease) in other cutrent asseis {6,58,29,242) -
Decrease In trade receivables -

Decrense in loans and advances (1,10,58,23,225) -
Cash generated in operating activities 2,36,61,10,966 (32,171)
Less: Income taxes refund received / (paid) {11,15,62,847) -
Net cash generated from operating activities A 2,25,45.48,11% (32,171

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received R

Investments transfested from GPL {48,96,68,688)
Fixed Assefs recogaized on Consolidation {2541,32,98,937)
Goadwil recognised on Consolidation {50,23,65,689)
Goodwilt recognised on acquisition of Subsidiary (75,55,193)
Capital Reserve on Demerger of GPLL to GHPL 24,35,25 505
Proceeds from sale of investments - -
et cash generated from investing activities B (26,16,93,63,002) -

Cash flows from financing activitics
Interest paid .
IProceeds from MEquity Share Capital 47,91,05,800 -

Proceeds from Preference Share Capital 1,67,70,03,000 -
Proceeds from shost-tesm borrowings, net 21,75,10,619 KY A
Repayment of Jong-tesm botrowings - -
Proceeds from long-tenm bofrowings 21,96,84.,44,158 -
Net cash used in financing activities C 24,34,20,61,577 32,11
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+BCY 42,72,46,694 -
Casli and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,849 2,849
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 42,72,49,543 » 2,849
Cash and cash equivalents comprises oft
Cash on hand 12,67,509 2,849
Balances with banks in current accounts 2,24,97,431 -
Ialances with banks in FIDs 40,34,84,60% -
42,72,49,543 2,849

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred 1o in our seport of
even daie,

TFor G.8, Sai Babu & Associates For and on by

Chartered Accountants
Fiem Regn, Nor@) 42078

alf it Board of directors o
rayva Bgitate Limited -
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Cotporate information

Gayatri Highways Private Limited - GHPL (“the Company”) (Fornedly Gayatti Domicile Private
Limited - GDPL) was incorporated duting the year 2006 in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. ‘The Company on its own and through its jointly controlled entities is in the business of construction,
operations and maintenance of cagriageways on toll and annuity basis parsuant to the development agreements
with the National and State Governments and makes investments in companies engaged in the construction,
opetations and maintenance of soads, higlways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads. The cegistered office
of the Company is located in 6-3-1090, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad.

Note on Composite Scheme of Artangement:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.6

General

Gayattl Projects Limited (“the Transferee Company” or “the Demerged Company” or “GPL”) is a public
limited company incotporated on 15 Seprember, 1989 under the provisions of the Act under the name
and style of “Andhea Coastal Constractions Private Limited”. The name was then changed to “Gayatri
Projects Private Limited” on 31t March, 1994, and subsequently on conversion into a public limited
company the name was c[mnged to its present name of “Gayatri Projects Litited”. The registered office
of the Demerged Company is sitvated at TSR Towers, B-1, 6-3-1090, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda,
Hydetabad, Telangana - 500082, India. The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on BSH
Limited and National Stock Fxchange of India Limited.

GPL is an infrasteucture and construction company with a presence acgoss the segment, and a special
focus on road and itigation projects. GPL has been exceuting construction orders across the country over
last 50 years and owns almost all its equipment, enabling optimal cost control. Its two subsidiacies, Gayatei
Infra Ventures Lid (“GIVL”) and Gayatri Bnergy Ventutes Private Lid (“GIIVPL”), are the Asset
Development arms for the Company. GIVL the road development arm and associate GPL entities ace
working on 6 opetating and 1 under-construction projects, adding up to gross capital employed in excess
of Rs. 5000 cr. GEVPL was set up to underiake power generation projects.

Gayatti Infra Ventutes Limited (“the Transferor Company” or “GIVL”) is a company incorporated on
2204 Januaty, 2008 under the provisions of the Act having its registered office at 19 Floor, TSR Towers, 6-
3-1090, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad, Kurnool, Telangana - 500082 India. GIV1. is a 70.5%%
subsidiary of GP1, while the balance sharcholding of 29.41% is held by AMP Capital Finance Mauritius
Limited. There is a definitive agreement in place between GPL and AMP Capital Finance Mauritius
Limited for the acquisition of the balance shareholding in GIVL. Pursuant to the shage purchase, GIVL.
would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPL

GIVL is a single holding company of the SPVs of BOT projects. Cugrently GIVL has portfolio of 6 BOT
projects, which compeises of 4 annuity BOT projects and 2 toll BOT project. All the projecis have
achieved their financial closure.

Gayatti Domicile Private Limited (“the Resulting Company” or “GIDPL”) is a private limited company
incogporated on 28% December, 2006 under the provisions of the Act having its registered office at I+
Floor, TSR Yowers, 6-3-1090, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda Myderabad, Telangana - 500082 India. The
Resulting Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPL.

']hu Reqnllmg Co IH P opoqed to be cngqgtd i the busmm of construction and other allied construction

i ﬂctlvillu.

?f\{ ]\’J.'erllll)[ Jo]l\vqys leltgd (“b]\fill,,”-) 15 2 (.ompqny mco: pomlod on 8”‘ ‘wc])tcmbm 201_1 undc; ‘the -
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Sumamaty of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for Consolidation
(All amounts in Tunless otherwise stated)

1.8 SMTLis a Special Purpose Company promoted by GPL. GPL was granted the contract from NFHAL The
project involves Four-Laning of Panikoili-Rimuli Section of NH-215 from Km.0.00 to Km.163.00 (Design
Length 166.173) in the State of Orissa under NHDP Phase —~ III as BOT (Toll) project on Design,
Construction, Finance, Operation and Maintenance under Private Public Partnership on “DBFOT” Basis.

1.9 This Composite Scheme of Arrangement provides for:

19.1

1.9.2
1.9.3

Transfer of investments in SMTL from GPL to GDPL, and the consequent discharge of
consideration by GIDPL to GPL

Post transfer of investments, metger of GIVL with GPL

Post metger of GIVL with GPL, transfer of Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business from the
Demetged Company to the Resulting Company and the consequent discharge of consideration
by the Resulting Company to the Demerged Company, putsuaat to the relevant provisions of
the Act.

1.10 This Scheme also makes provision for vatious other matters conscquential or related thereto and
otherwise infegrally connected therewith,

1.11 Rationale for the Scheme:

1.11.1

1.11.2

1.11.3

1.11.4

In otder to achieve better management and to have clear focus on business operations, the
management of Demerged Company has decided to demerge Infrastructure Road BOT Assets
Business, thereby transferring Infrasteuctute Road BOT Assets Business (as defined hereinaftes)
of GPL to GDPL, ia the intesests of maximizing overall shareholder value.

‘Therefore, with a view to effect such plan, the Board of Directors of Demetged Company and
the Resulting Company proposes that the Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business of the
Demerged Company be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on a going concern
basis to be undertaken through this Scheme (as defined hereinafter) under the provisions of
Sections 391 to 394 read with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Companies  Act, 2013, for such consideration and in such manner as provided for in this
Scheme (as defined hereinafter).

Accordingly, this Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, has been proposed to provide for transler
of Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business of the Demerged Company by way of demesger (o
the Resulting Company.

Upon the sanction of the Scheme by the High Coust (as defined hereinafter) and the
Composite Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date {(as defined hereinafter), the
Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business of the Demerged Company shall stand transfesred to,
and be vested in, the Resulting Company on and ftom the Appointed Date for all intent and
purposes.

112 The Composite Scheme is divided into the following parts:

1.12.1

1.12.2

1.12.3
1.12.4

Part A deals with the introductions and definitions;

Part B deals with eansfer of investments in SMTL from GPL to GIIPL

Part C deals with amalgamation of GIVL with GPIL.

Part T2 deals with Transfes of Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business from GPLL 1o GI2P),
by way of demerger, ie., all investments in Infrastructure Road BOT Assets of any nature

J'ncludinp investments in Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Lid (“GIJRL), Gayati Laligpus Roadways
Led (“GIRL), Myderabad Expressways Lid (“HIL”), Cyberabad Hxpressways Lad (“CHL”),
Indore Dewas lo]I\vays Lad (CHOTLR), B,lla]i ]Ilph\\ny‘: Holdings Pvt Lid (“BHHPL”), HKR

- Roadways Ltd (“TIKRRL?) and alt other interest per mmmp of relatable to ith fovestments in
Anfragtructure Road BOT Agsers Bmm( ssand - - - '
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Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for Consolidation
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113 “Appointed Date” for the putpose of the amalgamation of GIVL with GPJ. as mentioned in Part C of
this Scheme, and Income Tax Act, 1961 means April 1, 2016 or such other date as the Court or National
Company Law Ttibunal, as the case may be, under Section 391 to 394 of the Act may direct or approve;

114 “Appointed Date” for the purpose of mansfer of Infrastructure Road BOT Assets Business from GPL
to GDPL by way of demerger as mentioned in Part ID of this Scheme, and Income Tax Act, 1961 means
Match 31, 2017 o1 such other date as the Court or National Company Law Tribunal, as the case may be,
under Section 391 to 394 of the Act may direct or approve;

1.15 “Rffective Date” means the date on which the last of the consents, approvals, permissions, resolutions
and ordess as mentioned in Clause 31 shall be obtained or passed; or date on which the certified copy of
the Order of the High Coutt sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Hyderabad, 'I'elangana; whichever 1s later,

Implication
The National Company Law Tribunal (NCIT) vide its order Nos.

a) CP(CAA) No.29/230/HDB/2017 under section 230 and section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
dated 3zd November, 2017 — in the matter of Gayatdd Projects Limited (GPL),

by CP.{CAA) No.30/230/HDB/2017 under section 230 and section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
dated 3rd November, 2017 — in the matter of Gayatri Highways Private Limited (GHPL),

¢) CP{CAA) No.31/230/HDB/2017 under section 230 and section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
dated 3rd November, 2017 — in the matter of Gayatri Infia Ventures Limited (GIVL),

approved the composite scheme of arrangement between Gayatei Projects Limited (GPL), Gayatri Infia
Ventures Limited (GIVL), Gayatti Highways Ptivate Limited (GHPL) (“the Company™) (Iformerly Gayatsi
Domicite Private Limited), and theis Respective Shareholders.

Pursnant to above said NCLT order with effect from 1st Apiil, 2016 fi.e, appointed date for wansfer of
Investments beld in Sai Maatatini Tollways Limited (SMTL) by Gayaiti Projects Limited (GPL) to Gayatri
Highways Private Limited (GHPL)), all the Equity Investments inn SMTT. has been transferred from Gayatsi
Projects Limited to Gayawt Highways Private Timited for a consideration of an amounmt of
Rs.180,16,03,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Highty Crotes Sixteen Takhs Three Thonsand only) by
fssuing 1,24,60,000 Bquity Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting 1o Rs. 12,46,00,000/- and 16,77,00,300
Redeemable Preference shates of Rs, 10 each amounting to Rs. 167,70,03,000/- to Gayatri Projects Limited
by the Company.

Pursuant o above said NCLT Order with effect from 19 April, 2016 [i.e,, appointed date for amalgamation
of the Gayatrd Infia Ventures Limited (GIV1) with the Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL)], all the asscts and
liabilities of the GIVL ase merged with the GPL and GIVIL has stand dissolved without going through
process of winding up.

Fugther, as per the above said NCLUT order with effect from 31st March, 2017 [i.c. appointed date for
Demerger of Infrastructure BOT assets from Gayatsi Projects Limited to Gayatri Mighways Prvace
Limited}, all the assets and labilities pertaining to Infrasttucture BOYTs has been transflecred from Gayatr
~Projects Limited to Gayaud Highways Private Limited for a consideration of an amount of Rs.
35,45,03,800/= Rupees Thirty. Five - Croses Forty Five Lakhs 1hree Thonsand. ighe. Hundsed only) by
qmug ") 54 50 "55)0 ]?qm[y Shares. of Re 10 mch .mmu,u“ng 10 R\ %J 4.) 03 bO(J/"-lo Sh’ncho]dem _()f_'.
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3

A

]hc followmg entities, mwlpomtc,d i, 3ndm, _‘i

Putsuant to above said NCLT order with effect from 31st March, 2017 the company will have two
subsidiaties namely, “Indore Dewas Tollways Limited (IIVIL)” and “Sai Maatatini Tollways Limited
(SMTL)" and five jointly controlled entities namely, “Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited (GJRL)”, “Gayatsi
Lalitpur Roadways Limited (GLRL)Y?, “Fyderabad Fxpressways Limited (HEL)”, “Cyberabad Expressways
Limited (CEL)” and “HKR Roadways Limited (HICRRL)Y” and one associate “Balaji Highway Holdings
Private Limited (BHHPLY”. Since the subsidiaties, associate and jointly controlled entitics are accovnted as
per the applicable Indian Accounting Standards, the company also has adopted the Indian Accounting
Standards,

Investment in associate and Joint Ventures

Invesunents in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment in an associate or a joint ventute is initially recoguised at cost. The carrying amount of
the investment is adjusted to recopnise changes in the share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since
the acquisition date.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the shate of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture,
Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the OCL In addition, when thete has been a
change recopnised ditectly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Company recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Untealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Company and the associate o joint venture are climinated to the extent of the interest
in the associate or joint venture,

If an entity’s shave of losses of an associate or a joint ventuge equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joint ventuee (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form. part of the Company’s net
investment in the associate ot joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recopnised only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate ot joint venture. If the associate or joint venture

- subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the

profits equals the shase of losses not recognised.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepated for the same reporting period as the
Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment Joss on its invesiment in its associate or joint venture. At each repotting date, the Company
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired.
1f there is such evidence, the Company caleulates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate o joint venture and its cartying value, and then recognises the Joss as
‘Shate of profit of an associate and a joint venture” in the statement of profit or Joss.

Upon loss of sigaificans influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Company
measures and recogaises any retained investment at its fais value, Any difference between the casrying amount
of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair valwe of the

retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss

List of 15 11!111(.5: f.‘onsulldfltcd
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Interest in Subsidiary as on

Name of Subisidiaries

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Sai Maatarini Tollways Limited 100% 0% 0%
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 100% 0% 0%

Interest in Svbsidiaty as on

WName of Associates
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Aps-15

Balaji Highway Holdings Private
Limited 49% 0% 0%

. . Interest in joint conirel as on
Name of joint controlled entities

_, 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 51% 0% 0%
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 51% 0% 0%
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 20% 0% 0%
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 50% 0% 0%
HICR Roadways Limited 50% 0% 0%

5. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

These financial statements are prepared as per NCLT Order dated 3" November, 2017,
and it is for representation purpose and understanding of the stakeholders.

The Company’s management had previously {ssued its audited financial statements for the year ended
Match 31, 2016 on May 23, 2016 that were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles genesally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rudes, 2014 (Indian GAAP?),

With effect from April 1, 2016, the Company fs requited to prepare its financial statements under the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3
of the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Accouul.ing Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016, Accordingly, the Company’s management has now prepared these financial
statements in comphanm with Ind AS. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
including compagative information are the first the Company has prepated in accordance with Ind AS. In
preparing these financial statements under Ind AS, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at
April 01, 2015, the date of wansiton to Ind AS. These financial statements comprise the Halance Sheets as
at Masch 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, the Opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 (transition date), the
Statements of Profiy and Loss, lh(, Statements of Cash Flows and the S[atuncnts of Changes in Bquity for

the year ended March 33, 2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2016, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and othes explanatory information (together hereinafier seferred to as “Unconsolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements”), Refer note 29 for infommation on how the Comspany has adopted Ind AS.
‘The {inancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accsual basis, except
for certain {inancial asscts and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (tefer accounting policy
'Lqm( mg financial ingtroments). s - S :
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1.1

1.2

1.3

14

Accounting treatment given for the Composite Scheme approved by the NCLY in GHPL;

1)

2)

%)

Transfer of investments in SMTL. feom GPIL. to GHPL:

With effect from 01.04.20106 fie. appninted date for transfer of investments in SMTL from GPL to
GHPL], all the Equity Invu;tmcnts in SMTL has been transfersed from GPL to GHPIL. for a
consideration of an amount of Rs.180,16,03,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Eighty Crotes Sixteen
Lakhs Three Thousand only) by issuing 1,24,60,000 Equity Shates of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs.
12,46,00,000/- and 16,77,00,300 Redeemable Prefetence shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs.
167,70,03,000/- to GPL by the Company. The Haquity Investments in SMTL is recorded at fair value
considering Net Assets Value of SMTL as on date of transfer, which is Rs. 179,40,47,807/- and the
exeess consideration paid is recognised as Goodwill in the books of GHPL.

Amalgamation of GIVL with GPL:

With effect from 1% April, 2016 [ie., appointed date for amalgamation of the Gayatrd Infra Ventores
Limited (GIVL) with the Gayatsi Projects Limited (GP1)), ali the assets and liabilities of the GIVL are
merged with the GPL and GIVL has stand dissolved without going through process of winding up.

Transfer of Infrastructure Road BO'T Assets Business from GPL to GHPL by way of demergoer:

With effect from 31st March, 2017 [ie. appointed date for Demerger of Infrastucture BOT assets
from GPL to GIPL), all the assets and liabilities pertaining to Infrastructure BOTs has been
transferred from GPL to GHPL for a consideration of an amount of Rs. 35,45,03,800/- (Rupees Thicty
Five Crotes Forty Five Lakhs Three Thousand Eight Huadred only) by issuing 3,54,50,380 Hiquity
Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 35,45,03,800/- to Shaseholders of Gayatti Projects Limited by
the C sompany. All assets and liabilities transferred from GPL to GHPL are recorded at book values
exist in the GPL a8 on date of transfer and the difference between the Net Assets Value transferred
froma GPL and the consideration paid to shateholders of GPL is accounted as Capital Reserve in the
books of GHPL.

CONSIDERATION

Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the Resulting Company GIHPL (erstwhile GIDPL) shall, without
any further application or deed, issue and allot to every member of the Demerged Company, holding
flly paid up equity shates in the Demerged Company and whose names appeas in the Register of
Members of the Demerged Company on the Record Date, in the following ratio (the “Share Exchange
Ratio™):
In respect of every 1 {One) cquuy shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up held by such member in the
Demesged Company, 1 (One) equity shate in the Resulting Company of Rs 10/ cach credited as fully
])'lid up.

The equity shares to be issued and allotied in terms hereof will be subject 1o the Memorandum. and
Aurticles of Association of the Resulting Company;
In the event of thete being any pending share wansfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
shaseholder of the Demerged C ompany, the Board of Directors of the Resuling Company shall be
empowesed in appropsiate cases, prior o or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a
transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on the Record Date, in order to
remove any difficulties arising to the Demerped or Resulting of equity shates in the Demerged
Company, after the effectiveness of this Scheme, "Ihe New FEequity Shares (o be issued by the Resulting
Company pussuant to this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of the Demerged Company which ase

TDeld in abeyance under the pioviQions of the Act or otherwise shall pending allotment or setdement of

dispute by order of Court or otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Resulting Company.
Where New Equity Shares are to be allotted to leirs, executoss or administrators or, as the.case may be,
10 svecessors of deceased equity shaseholders of the Demerged Company, the concemned heirs,

" exeeutors, administrators or successors shall be ()13119( d 1o pfoduco owdc‘nce ()f mlc sﬂu«ﬁmmy to 1hc‘
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of Resulting Company are listed and admitted to trading, The Resuiting Company shall enter into such
arrangements and give such confirmations and/or undertakings as may be necessaty in accordance with
the applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of such stock exchanges where the
shares / secutities of the Resulting Company are listed. The New Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this
Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositozies systemn 6l relevant directions in relation o listing/ trading

are provided by the relevant stock exchanges,

1.6 In 50 far as New Fquity Shates ave concerned, the same will be distributed in dematerialized form to the
equity shareholders of Demerped Company, provided all details relating to the account with the
depository participant are available to Resulting Company. All those equity shareholdets who hold equity
shares of Dcmelged Company and do not p:ovidc theit details relating to the account with the
depository participant will be distributed New Iquity Shares in the physical/certificate form unless
otherwise communicated in writing by the sharcholders on ox before such date as may be determined by

the Boatd of Ditectors of Resulting Company ot committee thereof.

1.7 Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the New Equity Shares of Resulting Company to be issued
and allotted to the members of the Demerged Company as provided in the Scheme shall be subject to
the provisions of the memorandum of association and articles of association of the Resulting Company
and the New Lguity Shares shall tank pati passu from the date of allotment in all respects with the
existing equity shares of Resulting Company including entitlement in respect of dividends. The issue and
allotment of New Iiquity Shaves by the Resulting Company to the members of the Demerged Company
as provided in this Scheme is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out

pursuant to the Act,

1.8 Approval of the Scheme by the shareholders of Resulting Company shall be deemed to be due
compliance with the provisions of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant and
applicable provisions of the Act for the issue and allotment of shates by Resulting Company to the

shateholders of the Demeiged Company, as provided in this Scheme.

1.9 If any sharcholder of the Demerged Company becomes entitled to any fractional shares, entitlements or
credit on the issue and allotment of equity shares by the Resulting Company in accordance with Clause
24.1 of this Scheme, the Board of Dircctors of the Resulting Company shall consolidate all such
fractional entitlements and shall, without any further application, act, instrument o deed, issue and allot
such consolidated equity shares directly to an individual trust or a board of trustees or a corporate
trustee nominiated by the Resulting Company (the “T'rostee”), who shall hold such equity shares with alt
additions ot accretions thercto in trust for the benefit of the respective shareholders, to whotn they
belong and their respective heits, executors, administrators or successors for the specific purpose of
selling such equity shares in the market at such price or prices and on such time ot times, as the Trustee
who shall hold the same as a trustee for and on behalf of such sharcholders of Demerged Company, and
shall dispose of the same and distribute the proceeds thereof to such shareholders in proportion to and

in lien of their respective fractional entitlements,

110 The Resulting Company shall, if necessary and to the extent requited, increase / alter its Authorized

Share Capital to facilitate issue of New Fquity Shases under this Scheme.

b) Curgent versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cusient/ non-current

clagsification. At asset is treated as cutrent when it is:
- ixpected to be realised or intended to be sold in noymal operating cycle;
- Held primartily for the purpose of trading;
. Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the seporting period; or

~Cash or cash equivalent unless sestricted from being exchanped or used to setile a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period,
Al other agsets are classified as npn-current, .
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- There is no unconditional gight to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period
All other liabilittes are classified as non-cusrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-

current assets and liabilities. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢} Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received ot teceivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes ot duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest income: For all debt instruments measured either at amostised cost or at faie value through other
comprehensive income, intetest income is tecorded using the effective interest rate FUIR). BIR is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated futute cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instroment ot a shorter period, where apptoptiate, to the gross cartying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates
' the expected cash flows by considering all the conitactual terms of the financial instrament (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

d) Earnings/(loss) per shate
Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose
of caleulating diluted easnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted avetage number of equity shares outstanding dusing the year ave adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

e) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or consttuctive) as a result of a
past evest, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a relizble estimate can be made of the amouat of the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is matesial, provisions ate discounted using a current pre-tax tate that seflects, when
approptiate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

D) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original matusity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant tisk of changes in

value.

g) Taxes

Income tax expense comptises of cusrent and deferred tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities s
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from o paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, Current income fax relating to items recognised outside profic or loss Js'
recognised outside profit or toss (either in other comprebensive income or in equity). Current tax jtems are
recopnised fn correlation to the nndcr]ying transaction eithes in QOCI or directly in equity, Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retuns with respect (o situations in which ﬂp])]zmb]c tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provision where appropsiate,

Deferred tax js provided usmg the Jiability method on temporary d:({umcca bciwven l_ht la>. bfuscw of assels
. -.:gmd imbﬂiilc and thcu carrying, amounts for financial reposting pmpmcq '11 ihc mpo end
all faxable temporaty diffe ;:c,nccs ' o
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(All amounts in Tunless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the catty forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Defesred tax assets ate recognised to the extent that it is probable that
) taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the casty forward of
“ unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferved tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient tasable profit will be available to allow all ot part of the deferved tax
asset 1o be utilised. Unrecognised defesred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
secognised to the extent that it has become probable that futuse taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that ate expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the lability is settled, based on fax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset if a
Jegally enforeeable right exists to set off cusrent tax assets against cusrent tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

h) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any conteact that gives rise to a {inancial asset of one entity and a financial liability

ot equity instrament of another entity.

A) Financial Asset

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profic or loss, transaction costs that ate attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that requite delivery of assets within a time frame established by
repulation or convention in the matket place {tegular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For pueposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets ave classified in four categories:

- Debt instrusnents at amortised cost

- Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

- Bquity instraments measured at fait value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Delt instrements at amoriised cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is beld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting coniractual
cash flows, and

b, Contractual terms of the asset pive rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, '

. This category is the most relevant 10 the ( ,ompqny After initial measurement, such financial assers are

~subsequently measused at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (BIR) method, Amortised cost i

- calevlaged by taking dnto account any discount or premium on ﬁcqumuon and fees of costs thal are an
m_lq)m] p"u.!, c>f 1]1(, LIR The IR amortisation is included in finance income in.the ;)10fn 05 loss. ]hc_
i . i cd in 1]u, pmﬁt ()J loss. l']m (,Atogmy gcn(’l ally applies 1 :

;
!
i
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Equity investments:

All equity investments in jointly controlled entities are measured at cost less diminution other than
temporary. All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Bquity investments
which ase held for trading are classified as FVIPL. For all othet equlty mvestments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in fait value. The Company makes such
clection on an instrument by instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is

ierevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity insteument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in OCL There is no recycling of amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. Hauity instruments included within the FVIPL categoty are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the P&L.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (Le. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a.  the tights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and (f) the Company has
transferred substantially all the sisks and rewards of the asset, or (i) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (HCL) model for measurement

ahd recognition of impairment loss on debt instruments.

B) Financial Liability

Initial tecognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial tecognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and botrowings, payables as appropriate. All fipancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of ditectly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial Habilities include trade and other payables, loans and botrowings inciuding hank
overdrafts, and financial guarantee contracts,

Subsequent measurement
"The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit er loss inchude financial liabilities designated uposn initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or lass.

: Loans and bortowings

5 This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recopnition, intesest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measused at amortised cost using the BIR method. Gains and losses are
“recopnised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derccognised as well as {h;-(mgh the IZIR amortisation

process. Amortised cost is calenlated by taking into account any discount or premivm oh chmsus(m and

- fees ok ¢osts that ase an mtcgml pful <>f ihc L]R l"lw ] IR '\monmuon is, mcludcd as {xmnce costs in ihc

-_.-g(qecmcm ofinoﬂl 'mdloqv, s : L R R eae
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Financial guatantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requite a payment to be made
1o reimbugse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
' it accordance with the tesms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts ate recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that ave directly attributable to the fssuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the Hability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impaitment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation

Derecognition

A financial liability fs desecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expites. When an existing financial Hability is teplaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability ate substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original Lability and the recognition of a new liability.
The diffexence in the tespective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recoguition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
Habilities. For financial assets which ate debt insteuments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change
in the business model for managing those asscts. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
seclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the fitst day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. ‘The Company does not restate any previonsly
tecopnised pains, losses (including impaisment gains or losses) or intetest,
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Total
{a) Tangible Assets
Gross block
As at 1 April 2015 -
Addisions during the year .
As at 1 Apait 2016 .
Addions on Demerper of G, 11,03,538
Additons on Consolidation 42,55,736
As at 31 March 2017 53,59,274
Accumaulated depreciation
Up to 1 April 2015 10,566,855
Charge for the year -
Up to 31 March 2010 -
Charpe for the year "
Up to 31 March 2017 21,41,623
Net block
Ag at 31 March 2017 32,117,751
As at 31 March 2016 -
As at 31 March 2015 -
7 Intangible assets
As at

31 March 2017 31 Mascl: 2016 31 March 2015
() Catringoway (115 8,09,55,04,478 - -
{ii) Totangible assels wader development
- 8ai Matarini Tollways Limited 17,09,25,78,215 - ~
- 1adore Diwas Tollways Limited 22,59,98,493 - -

25,41,60,81,186 - -
8 Investments
As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Non-cureeint investments
Unguoted
Investments enrried #t cost
Investments in oquity instruments of Subsidiasies
1,24,60,000 (2016: 1,24,60,000; 2015: 0) equity
shares of Ry.30 cach fully paid-up in Sai
NMatarini Tollways Limited 1,79,40,47,807
Less: Adjustment of Consolidation {1,79,40,47,807)
33,340 {2016: 16,680, 2015 16,680) cqity 3,332,400 . .

shaces of 10 each folly paid-up in Indore
Daowas Tolhways Bimited.
Less: Adjustment of Consolidation (3,33,100)
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8 Invesiments (Confinued..)

: As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
, Investments in equity instruments of jointly controlled entities
990,006 (2016: 990,000; 2015 990,000) equity 22,38,47,043 - -
shares of T10 each fully paid-up in Hydembad
Fapressways Limited.
Lass: Accumulated Losses (9,29,38,028) - .
13,09,09,045 “ ~
396,000 (2016: 990,000; 2015:990,600) cquity 5,92,07,575 - -
shares of T10 cach fully paid-up in Cyberabad
ixpressways Jimited,
Tess: Accurmulated Losses (5,92,07,575) - -
21,619,994 {2016 21,019,994, 2015: 38,28,94,659 - -
21,619,994) cquity shares of T10 cach fully paid-
up in Gayatit Jhansi Roadways Limited.
Lass: Accumudated Losses (22,33,89,718) - -
15,95,04,941 - -
16,218,600 (2016 16,218,000; 2015: 28,95,64,494 - -
16,218,000) equity shares of T10 each fully paid:
up in Gayatsi Lalitpur Roadways Limited.
Less: Accumulated Losses (9,03,09,762) - -
19,92,54,732 - -
1,717,642 (2016: 510,647, 2015: 510,647) equity 1,71,76,420 -
shages of T10 cach fully paidop o HKR
Roadways Limited.
Bess: Accumulated Losses 1,71,76,420) - -

Investments in equity instruments of associates

49,000 (2016: Nil; 2015 Ni) equity shases of 4,90,000 - -
%10 cach fully paid-up in Balafi Mighway

Holdings Private limited.

Tess: Accumulated Losses (4,90,000) - -

Investments in compulsorily convertible
debentures of jointly controlled entitics

8,550,000 (2016:  21,375000; 2015 Nij) §,55,00,000 -

debentuses of 310 cach fully paidup in

Cyberabad Bapressways Limited.

Less: Accumnlated Loss absorbed (8,55,00,000) - -
Total pen-current invesiments 48,96,68,088 . -
Lass Investments held for sale

Net value of non-current investiments 48,96,68,688 - N

Aggregate amount of wnguoted : :
invcslmcnt_s ' o S ' 48,96,68,688 - -

: Nolv llu ;nbn\'c Iawutmu:t&. are rwmdcc! fi pc: NU T order ci.u( dd drd Novunbu 2017, which is <fl‘u,1:w :
‘b 2017 .md it xs ¢ )‘-('d fus upu.h( nt.tuun ])!.Up()ﬁ(_ and undusinrsdmg* ofth(‘ o :
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11

9 Loans
As at
31 Masch 2017 31 March 2616 1 April 2015
Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related partics
-Loans to jointly controlled entitics 86,93,44,562 - -
86,93,44,562 - -
Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related parties
-Loans to jointly controlled entitics 23,64,78,663 -
23,64,78,663 - -
10 Other Non-Current Assets
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Capital Advance
Long teem loan and advances-related party 14,84,21,611 - -
Retemtion money-NHAI 27,550,914 - -
Seeurity Deposits 450,997 - -
Rent Advance 22000 . -
Advance for Toll Collection Management 2,00,000 ~ -
15,18,45,522 - -
Casl and cash equivalents
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2018
Balances with banks
- on cureent accounts 2,24,97.431 . -
- Fixed Deposit with Banks 40,34,84,603 - -
Cash on hand 12,67,509 2,849 2,849
42,72,49,543 2,849 2,849
12 Other Current Assets
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
I\'I(')bﬂixa‘l"io:.] advance - COS & Unility shifting 1,89,20,451
paid to GPL, - -
Advances towards New Toll Plza contract 130,100
works .
Gayatii Projects -Others 79.20,000 -
Prepaid expenses 75,61,080 -
Interest accrucd but not recelved on Fixed
deposits from Union bank of India 5,09,45,893 - .
Interest Accrued on 1F1) 2,327118 N
Other advances 1,21,000 - -
Miscellancous Mxpenditure to the extent not
willten off 1,891,200 1,917,200 1,91,200
Pre-operative Hxpenditure 48,080 48,080 48,080
" 2,359,280 2,39,280

6,60,68,52

/".‘."3‘3-7-«.‘:‘;:*_-
/{’{5 8 A 5\
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14 Other equity

As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve generated on demerper of
Infrastructure BOT assets from GPL o
GIHPL 24,35,25,505 - -
Retained carmings
Balance as per last audited fnancial
staternents (70,126) {57,955) {18,714
Add: Loss for the year (56,94,00,563) (32,171 (19,241)
Balance at the end of the year (56,94,70,68%) (70,126} {37,958)
Total other equity (32,59,45,184) (70,126) (37,955)
15 Borrowings
As at
31 March 2017 31 Mazch 2016 1 April 2015
(2) Non-cusrent borrowings
Tetmn loans
Seccured
From Banks 13,53,45,37,092 - -
From Financial Institutions 3,74,63,00,000 -
Sub Debt from HIFCL 1,13,26,30,976 -
Funded Interest on Term Loans
- from Banks - FITL 1,02,81,16,360 - -
« from Financial Institutions ~ FITL 29,60,99,893 - -
Less: Coteent matutities of long-term (75,00,000)
horrowings -
Less : Unamoriised Finance Cost 16,60,193 -
19,73,18,44,514 - -
Cuttent Bosrowings
‘Tewm Loans - Secured
From Banks & [Financial Institutions 75,00,000 - -
Unsecntred
From related party 1,00,15,99,644
From othets 1,23,50,00,000 -
2,23,65,99,644 - L
(b) Short-term bosrowing
Loans repayable on demand
Unsecured
From related party 21,74,77,704 - -
Hrom Others 1,41,799 1,08,884 76,713
21,76,19,503 1,08,884 76,713
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i 15 Borrowings (Continued...)
Terms & Conditions for Loans in GIVL:
> (i) Tesn loans from others agpregating to 1.11,235,000,060 (31 March 2016: Nil; 31 March 2015: Nil) is secured by way of;

(=) pledge of 1,180,555 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatri Projects Ltd, providing » minimum cover
of twice the facility amount;
(1) corporate guaranice of Gayatei Projects Limited;
(¢} personal guatantee of Mr. T ¥ Sandeep Kumar Reddy; and
(d) demand promissory note,
iy Terms of repayment

As at
31 March 2017 31 Mazch 2016 1 April 2015
Up to 1 year - - 1,35,00,00,000
2 to 5 years 1,23,50,00,000 - -
Above b years - - -
1,23,50,00,000 - 1,35,00,00,000

1) The above facilities casey an annual interest rate of 15% (31 March 2016: 16% and 31 Masch 2015: 16%).

viy Loan covenants
Bank loans contain certain information covenants relating to submiission of audited financial statements within specified

time petlod and quatterdy updates on operations of the entity. The company has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in
the tertns of bank loan.

v} Short-term bogsowing represents interest free loans repayable on demand.

Tetims & Conditions for Loans in SMTL:
Nature of Security for Sccured Loans:
A, Term Loans {rom banks and financial

institutions ate secured by:

n) First mortgage and charge on all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future, if any, save and except the
Profect Assets.

) & first charge by way of hypothecation on all the Botrower’s tangible moveable assets, including but not limited to all
cursent/ non-cusrent assets, moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessoties, fusniture, fixires,
vehicles, all other movable assets, both present and future, save and except the Project Assets.

©) a first charge on all the Borrower's bank accounts including but not limited to the Escrow Account/its Sub-Accounts that
may be opened in accordance with the Common Loan Agteement, the Supplementary Escrow Agreement, or any of the
other Project Documents whete al} revenues, disbutsements, receivables shall be deposited and on 2l funds from time to
time deposited therein and on all permitted investments or other securities sepresenting all amounts credited to the Escrow
Acconnt,
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15 Borrowings (Continued...)

d) a first charge on all intangibles of the Borrower including but not limited 10 goodwill, rights, undertakings, uncalled capital
; and intellectual property rights, both present and future, save and except the Project Assets (provided that all amounts
: seceived on account of any of these shall be deposited in the Lscrow Account and that the charges on the same shall be
subject 1o the extent petmissible as per the priotity specified in the Clause 31 of the Concession Agreement and Clause 4 of
the Hserow Agreement). Fusther, a charge on uncalled capital, as set in above, shall be subject however to the provisions of
Clauses 5.3 and 7.1 (k) and Clause 31 of the Concession Agreement.

¢} an assignment by way of secuzity
() of the right, title, intetests, benefits, claims and demands of the Borrower In, (o and under the Project Documents, duly

acknowledged and consented to by the selevant countes-parties to such Project Documents o the extent not expressly

provided in cach such Project Document, all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time;
(i} of the right, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the Borrower in, to and under all the Approvals and
Insurance Contracts; and
(i} of the xght, title, interests, benefits, claims and detands of the Borrower in, to and under any letter of credit, guatantees
including contractor guarantees and lguidated damages and performance bond provided by any patty to the Project
Documents.

£ pledge of equity shares (in dematesdalised form) held by the Sponsor constituting 51% (filly one percent) of the total paid up
and voting equity shage capital of the Borrower until the Final Setdement Date.

g) an irrevocable and unconditional guarantee from the Sponsor for meeting the shortfall between Secured Obligations then
outstanding and the amounts receivable by the Lenders in accordance with Clause 4.2 of the Esctow Agteement in case of
Termination of Concession Apreement for any reason,

B. Subordinate Debt from India
Infrastructure Finance Co, Lid. is
secured by: '

a) Mortgape and second charge on all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future, if any, save and except the
Pioject Assets.

b) A second charge by way of hypothecation on all the Borvower’s tangible moveable assets, including but not limited to all
curgent/ non-curent assets, moveable plant and machinery, machinesy spares, tools and aceessoties, furniture, fixtures,
vehicles, all other movable assets, both present and future, save and except the Project Assets.

¢) A second chatge on all the horrower's hank accounts including but not limited to the Esctow Acccunt/its sub-accounts that
may be opened in accordance with any of the Project Agreement,

) A second charge on all intangibles of the Bomrower including but not Hmited to goodwill, rights, undestakings, wncalled
capital and intellectunl property rights, both present and Fatare, save and except the Project Assets {provided that all
amounts received on account of any of these shall be deposited in the Hscrow Account and that the charges on the same
shzll be subject to the oxtent permissible as per the priotity specified in the Clanse 31 of the Concession Agreement and
Clause 4 of the Escrow Agreement), Further, a charge on uncalled capital, as sct in above, shall be subject however to the
provisions of Clauses 5.3 and 7.1 {) and Clause 31 of the Concession Agreement.
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15 Borrowings (Continued...}

E ) an assignment by way of security
; (D) of the sighu, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the Boxtower in, to and under the Project Documents, duly

acknowledged and consented to by the relevant counter-parties to such Project Documents 1o the extent not expressly

provided in each such Project Document, all as amended, vatied ot supplemented from time (o time;
(i) of the right, ttle, intereses, benefirs, claims and demands of the Botrower in, to and under all the Approvals and
Insurance Contracts; and
(iii) of the right, title, interests, bencfits, claims and demands of the Bortowet in, to and under any letter of credit, guarantees
including contractor puatantecs and liguidated damages and petformance bond provided by any party to the Project
Documents.

) An irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee from the Sponsor.

Terms of repayment of Secured Loans

A.  The Company shall repay the 'Term Loans to the Lenders in 48 (forty eight) unequal quatterly installmenss commencing
after the Motatorium Petiod, as specified in the Amortization Schedule to the Common Loan Agreement dated Juse 26,
2013. The first sepayment instaliment shall be due on Januaty 1, 2016, The last repayment installmenr shall be paid on
Qctober 1, 2027,

B. ‘The Company shali repay the Subordinate Loan to the Subordinate Lender in 18 quartesdy installments commencing after
the Moratosium Period, as specified in the Amortization Schedule to the Subordinate Loan Agreement. The first repayment
installment shall be duc on Januaty 1, 2023. The last repayment installment shall be paid on Apeil 1, 2028. However, the
Sponsor, in addition to the Spoasor’s Contribution without any fecousse to the lenders and/or the secured property to the
satisfaction of the lenders infuse an amount equivalent to the debt service obligations of the bottower undet the subordinate
facility, in advance on year-on-year basis, as per the repayment schedule stipulated by the subotdinate lender.

Rate of Interest on Secured Loans
A.  Applicable Interest Rate on Tenm Loans shall be floating at - (a) Spread @ 2% p.a. above the Base Rate of the Lead Baok
viz, IDBI Bank Lid.; ot (b) Spread @ 2% p.a. above the IIFCL benchmask rate, whicheves is higher.

B. Applicable Intesest Rate on Subordinate Loan shall be floating at Spread, .. 2% p.a. above the Intesest rate applicable to

IDBI Bank Lid. as per the Common Loan Agreement.

Terms relating to Interest and Repayment of Unsecured Loans:
The amount advanced by holding Company is in the nature of promotess’ conteibution which cardes Nil rate of Interest.
The loan is sub-ordinate to the Term Loan 10 be availed from the lendess and the same will be paid aftes repayment of Term

T.oans in Mk
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15 Borrowings (Continned...)

Terms & Conditions for Loang in IDTL:

Note: National Highways Authotity of India has approved the proposal for the deferment of premium payable as per the
sanction letter dated 11th June, 2014, Based on the approval received from National Highways Authotity of lodia, the
company has applied to the consoritum of lenders for restructuring of the term loan. The Consortivm of Lenders have
approved the testructuring package with the cutoff date being 1st July, 2014 with a Moratoriom of 33 months for Intetest
and principal Obligations . The cuttent matwities with tespect to the Tesm loan I principal sepayment and Funded Interese
T'etm loan principal repayment 8 TL IT Principal Repayment are amounting to T 9.44 cts for the FY 2017-18. The Lenders
have reset the Rate of Interest in the curtent year to 10.10% pa

Terms of Repayment

Secured Loans;

(a} As per the terms of the sancion, the Tesm Loan IF of T40,00,00,000 is tepayable within 20 equal instabments immediately
from the next month of the disbugsement. During the cosrenst financiat year an amount of T 31,12,00,000 has been disbutsed
on account of Term Loan 1T and an amount of ¥ 5,55,70,000 principal has been repaid. The current maturities for Term
Loan I1 arc amountng to ¥18,67,20,000. We have submitted the draft Restructuting documents on Sth May, 2015 w0
National Flighways Awthority of India for review, and also submitted the executed documents on 26th July, 2015 for
approval to Nadonal Highways Authority of India

(b As per the terms of the Restruceuring package, an amount. of £10,00,00,000; £9,50,00,000 & ¥ £9,70,00,000 has to be
kept as Debt Service Reserve Account with the Lead bank for the FY: 2014-15; 2015-16 & 2016-17 respectively,

{¢) The additional term loan of ¥ 40,00,00,000 has Leen sanctioned by the lenders for the completion of the balance BPC
works which were delayed due to the below mentioned reasoss:

i) Delay on the part of National Highways Authotity of India in handing over of the Right Of Way. Thete was also a
delay on the part of National Highways Authotity of India in publishing the Gazette notification for Toll collection.
({)Delay on the patt of National Highways Authotity of India in shifting of Utilities je., electrical poles, drinking water
pipe lines ete, which cteated 2 hindrance {or the compledon of the project works,
(iti) Delay on the part of National Flighways Authority of India in declaring the Appointed date (st Sep, 2011) after
signing of the Concession Agreement (17th May, 2010). {delay of 7 months from the date of financial closure je 8th Fels,
2011).
(iv) The Right of Way issue & the shifting of the denking water pipe line at Rav junction was pending at the  time of
il issue of Provisionat Comypletion certificate fe on 29th May, 2015 and is not sesolved ll dare,
' Due to all the above reasons, the Schedule Project Completion Date was delayed.

{d) Due to all the above factors, the Interest duting construction has increased as against the budgeted amount stipulated in
the Project cost and the funds budgeted for IZPC cost were wiilized [or the parpose of sesvicing inferest o the lenders, 1n
liew of the above the lenders have agreed to fund the additional werm loan for the complesion of the balance BPC works,

¢) Terms of the Restrocturing Package:

1) Fhe Restractuting packape is approved with o eut off date of july 03, 2014.
2) Reducton in interest rates on all Texm Loan facifitites (Term Loan -1 ¥ 450,00,00,000, Funded Interest Term Loan
2136,18,58,057 & Term Loan -1 ¥ 40,00,00,000) to 11% fixed pa. upto FY: 2016-17, which is 1o he Jinked to the Base Raie
of the Lead Lender.

3) The interest on Term Loan for 11 quartess from cur-off date (July 1, 2014) 1o March 31, 2017 is to be funded thyouph
Funded Interest Term Loan ($136,18,58,057 ).

43 I\iotﬂsmjnm of 2 years 9 months for the sepayment of Term Loan - ] & Funded interest 'Lerm Loan,
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£} Sccurity for Tetm Loans:
Tetm Loans from lenders are secuted by
@ All monies including Toll collected on the Project Highway to the credit of the Hscrow Account as per the provisions
of the Concession Apgeement.
(1) All the Borrower's Properties and Assets excluding the Project Assets as defined in the Concession Agreement
(iii) All 'Tangable Assets of the Company not limited to Goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital of the company.

(iv) Pledge of shares agategating to 66.64% of the paid-up equity capital of the Botrower, Provided that any enforcement of
the pledge over shares shall be subject to prior approval of NHATL as provided in the Concession Agreement
(v) A first charge by way of assignment or creation on Secuority Interest on:

a) All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of Indore Dewas Tollways Limited under project documents
subject to the provisions of the Concession Agreement.

b) Assignment of tights in favour of the lendess in accordance with the substitution agreement in respeet of financing by
the senior lenders under the financing documents for the project.

¢) Lenders to be named as loss payees in the insusance policies.

g) Terms of Repayment of Term Loan from Lenders

a) The tenor of the repayment of the Term Loan - T for ¥450,00,00,000 shall be for a period of 12 years (twelve) years
excluding 2.9 years of motatotinm with 48 stractured unequal quartedy Instalments ranging from ¥ 5,00,000 1o ¥
78,66,00,000 per annum as peg the approved restructuting package.

bY The tenor of the wepayment of Funded Interest Term Loan for $136,18,58,057 shall be for 4 period of § years yeass
excluding 2.9 years of moratorium with 28 structured unequal quatterly instalments ranging from. ¥1,00,00,000 to
¥38,80,00,000 per annum as per the approved restructuring package.

¢) The tenor of the repayment of Additional Term Loan - II for ¥ 40,00,00,000 shali be for 20 monthly Instalments starting
from the month of disbussement subject to the completion of the disbursements as per the approved restructoring package.

h) Repayment of Zeto percent loan (Unsecored loans from promoters) :
Subosdinate debt will he sepaid only after the payment of debt Obligations towards the Lenders
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16 Other Non-cusrent liabilities

As at
) 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Additional Concession Fees Payable to NEAI 3,19,16,25,868
) Interest on Additional Concession Fees 3,04,45,850
Provison for Gratuity 17,23,898
3,22,57,95,616 - -
17 Trade Payables
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 Apail 2015
Salaries Payable 4,80,900
Audit fees payable 242,050 - -
NHAJ-IC Fee payable 75,94,686
PMC Fee payable 16,49,318 - -
Others Payabie 56,59,662 - ) -
1,56,26,616 - -
" (@) Teade payables are son-interest bearing and ase normally setdled within 90 days

(b} '"The idemification of micro, small and medium enterprise supplices as defined vnder the provisions of “Micro, small and
medium enterprises Act, 20067 is based on Management’s knowledgre of their status. There are ne dues to micro, small and

18

i8

19

medivm enterprises as on 31 Maceh 2057 or 31 March 2016 or 1 Apri 2015,

Other financial liabilitics

As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Current matueitics of long-teem boreowings (cefer 10,19,06,285 - -
note 10}
Payable to related pariies | 4,00,000
Creditors for expestses 1,06,57,404 -
Interest acerued and due on borrowings 76,26,651
Interest accrued but not due on bosrowings 4,68,48,504 - -
Tanancinl puarantee 10,74,94,677
: 27,4%,33,521 - -
Other Curreng liabilities
As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 Apiil 2015
Statntory liabilities 16,30,66,194 - -
Creditoss for eapital expenditare 45,42,05,619 - -
Creditosrs for Iixpenses 12,35,393 - -
Other Site Jxpenses 1,27,06,561 - -
Retention Money Payable 6,85,57,691 -
GPL - Operation & Maintenance Comeactor A/c 1,72,77,400 - -
Mobilization Advance for COS & Utility shifting from 1,95,60,440 v
Payable to GPL on account of COS & Uiility Shifting T1,47,653 - -
Shoxt “Vermy Provisions 0.00,186 3,371 3,371
74,46,57,137 3,371 3,371

Other expenses

For the year ended

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

" Tinting & Stationerey
- Auditos's ro

Rates and taxes

Bank Chasges

Conveyanee

Lepal & Professional Bxpenses
Office Maintenance

emunerntion (refer note below

17,915
2,677
7,260

85,525

12,363
5,320

2,58,000

28,800

TTTTRES,060
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20 Goodwill

For the year ended

31 March 2017
{i} Goodwill o Acquisition of Subsidiaties
Cost of Investment in SMTLL
(A)Fquity Share Capital of GHPL issued to GPL 12,46,00,000
(b)Preference Share Capital of GHPL issued to GPL 1,67,70,03,000
‘Total (A) 1,80,16,03,000
Value of Invesiment in SMTL
{#Tquity Share capital of SMTL 10,00,08,430
{b)Securities Premmm 1,70,15,94,153
(©Profir & Loss Afc (75,54,776)
Total (B) 1,79,40,47,807
Goodwill on Acquisition of Subsidiaties (A-B) (1) 75,565,193
(i} Goodwill on Censolidation of Subsidiaries
Cost of Investment in IDTL
{m)Equity Share Capital of GHPL in IDTL 3,33,400
Total (A) 3,33,400
Value of Investment in IDTL
(A)Equity Share capital of TDTL 5,00,000
{YProfit & Loss Alc {1,14,38,80,276)
{&)Other Equity 70,25,00,000
{dyk.ess: Loan from GIVL to IDTL (6,11,52,013)
Total (B) (50,20,32,289)
Goodwill ons Consolidation of Subsidiaries (A-B) (II) 50,23,65,689
Consolidated Geodwill (I+11) 50,99,20,882
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21 Income taxes

The following table provides the details of income tax assets

As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
TDS Receivable 11,15,62 847 - .
11,15,62,847 - -

22 Breakup of financial assets and financial liabilities cartied at amortized cost

As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Financial assets
Trade receivables , - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 42,72,49,543 2,849 2,849
Loans 1,10,58,23,225 - -
Total 1,63,30,72,768 2,849 2,849
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22,18,60,63,661 1,08,884 76,713
Trade payables 1,56,26,616 - -
Other financial liabilities 27,49,33,521 -
Total 22,47,60,23,798 1,08,884 76,713

23 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The prepatation of the Company's financial statements requites management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that tequire a matetial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concening the futuge and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,

that have a significant zisk of cavsing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilities within
the next financial year, are desctibed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on pasameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Jixisting clreumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that aze beyond the control

of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Recoverability of investments in jointly controlled entities and fellow subsidiaries

The Investments of the Company includes investments made in equity shares of jointly controlled entities and

fellow qubéidi'wim amounting to [11,046,287,041 and advances seceivable from these entitics a5 on 31 March

017 funoun{mg Lo {11 '165 906 073 ¢ '\ppmunp m loans. On, tlac b;ma o{ -slfllus of opcmuon con(muom suppon :

2y
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24 Yair Values
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, trade
payables, borrowings, other financial liabilities approximate thelr carrying amounts Jargely due
to the short-term maturities of these instrutnents or as they caery market rate of interest.

25 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables. 'The main purpose of these financial Habilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its opesations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is cxposed to matket sisk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these tisks. The senior management provides
assurance to the Company’s Board of Ditectors that the Company’s {inancial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and sisk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
surnmarised below:

a) Matket Risk:

Market tisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market tisk compuises three types of risk: intetest
rate tisk, currency tisk and other price sisk, such as equity price sisk, Financial instruments
affected by market tisk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate tisk

Tnterest rate sisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in matket interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations
with floating interest rates.

b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the sisk that countesparty will not meet its obligations vnder a financial insttument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company s exposed to credit risk from its
financial instruments in the {orm of loans to jointly controlled entities, fellow subsidiaries and
others,

¢) Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital,
share premium and all other equity reserves attiibutable to the equity holdess. The puimagy
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustiments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital 1o

s sharcholders or issue pew shares, The Company monitors <f1pm] usmp a %mimp atio, whxch is

et d(‘bl_ dwid(‘d by 10Lr1§ C

apital plm net d(‘b[
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26 Contingent liabilitics

As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1. April 2015
Disputed income tax dues 8,92,926 - -

Pledge of equity shates held in jointly
controlled entities for loans taken by them

Gayatri JThansi Rondways Limited 1,724,62,97,646 - .
Gayatri Lalispur Roadways Limited 92.12,48,174 - -
HIR Roadways Limited 1,57,79,09,300 - -

Cosporate guarantee given to Jendess of

Indore Dewas Yollway Linsited 6,26,13,00,000

IC fees payable o NHATL in IDTL 2,23,96,833 - -

The Company has extended cestain cotporate puatantees to the lenders of the group entities in accordance
with the contractual terms entered into with them, The management, on the basis of assessment of the nature
of business activities carried on, is of the view that the provisions of Scction 186 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company as it does get classified as a Company casrying on “Infrastructural Projects” as defined in
Schedule VI 1o the Act.

27 Related party disclosures

Name of related patties and nature of relationship
Wame of the related party Nature of relationship
Sai Matagint Tollways Limited
Indote Dewas Tollways Limited
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited Assaciate
Gayatri Thansi Roadways Limited
Gayatuk Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Hyderabad Bapressways Limited Jointly controlled entitics
Cyberabad Expressways Lionired
HEKR Roadways Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiarics

28 Interest in Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly controlled entities
The Company's interest in jointly controlled entities is as below:
Interest in jointly controlled entity as on

Name of entity

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Subsidiaries
Saj Matarini T'ollways Limited 100% 0% e
Indore Dewas Tolhways Limued 100% 0% 0%
Associates
Balaji Mighways Holding Private Limited 49% 0% 0%
Jointly Contcolled Entitics
Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited 51% (0% 0%
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 51% 0% 0%
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 20% 0% 0%
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 5% 0% 0%

FIKR Roadways Limited 50% 0% 0%
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29 Fitst-time adoption of Ind AS
These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with Yod AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 Maich 2016, the Company
: prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standatds notified under section 133 of
; the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragtaph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
: (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepated financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for

periods ending on 31 Match 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended

31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In prepating these financial

statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the Company’s date of

transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
: Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance shect as at 1 Apsil 2015 and the financial
" statements as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2016.

Exemptions availed:
Set out below ate the applicable Ind AS 101 exemptions applied in the transition from psevious GAAP to
Ind AS:

Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permits « fivst time adopter to clect to continue with the camrying value of all property, plant
and equipment as recopnised in the financial statements as on the date pf transition to Ind AS, measured
as per previous GAAP and use that as its decmed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary

adjustment to de-commissiong liabilities.
Accordingly, the Company has clected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their
previous GAAYP canrying values. -

a. Faiv valuation of interest free loans given to jointly controlled entities

Under previous GAAP, the loans given to jointly controlled entities are recorded at transaction value.
Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company
has fair valued these loans under Ind AS. The difference between the carrying value and the fair value on
the date of transaction has been treased as investment made in the jointly controlled entities and finance
income on these loans from the date of transaction till the date of transition has been treated as an
increase in Retained earnings as on date of transition i.e. 1 April 2015, Purther, the finance income for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income in the Statement of Profit and Loss

for sespective financial years,
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29 Notes to First time adoption of Ind AS (continued)

b. Fair valuation of interest free loans given to fellow subsidiaries

Under previous GAAP, the loans given to fellow subsidiasies are recorded at transaction value. Under Ind
A8, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued
these loans under Ind AS. The difference between the cartying value and the fair value on the date of
transaction has been treated as dividend paid to Holding Company ie. Gayatsi Projects Limited and
finance income on these loans from the date of transaction fill the date of transition has been treated as an
increase in Retained earnings as on date of transition 1.e. 1 April 2015. Further, the finance income for the
yeat ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for tespective {inancial years.

c. Fair valuation of financial guarantee given to lendess of jointly controlled entities

Undex previous GAAP, the financial guarantees given to lenders of joiatly controlled entities were shown
as Contingent liabilities in the notes to financial statements and the same were not recorded. Under Ind
AS, all financial guarantec contracts are tequired to be recognised as financial liability at the time of
issvance of such guarantee. The financial liability has been recorded at its fair value initially and
subsequently recotded at higher of amount tecognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 or initially
recognised amount less amortisation. of fair value. In case of the financial guarantees given to lendess of
jointly controlled entities with no compensation, the fair value is secorded as part of cost of investment
made in that jointly controlled entity, The fair value is measured at the present value of the guarantee
commission income oves the effective period of the guarantee. The guatantee commission income from
the date of guarantee till the date of wansition has been treated as an increase in Retained eatnings as on
date of transition i.e. 1 April 2015. Further, the financial guatantee income for the year ended 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income in the Statement of Profit and Loss for respective
{inancial years.

d. Fair valuation of financial guatantee given to lenders fellow subsidiary

Under previous GAAP, the financial guarantees given (o lenders of fellow subsidiaties wese shown as
Contingent liabilities in the notes to financial statements and the same were not recorded. Under Ind AS,
all financial guarantee contracts are required to be recognised as financial liability at the time of issuance of
such guatantee. The financial liability has beea recorded at its fair value initially and subscquently recorded
at higher of amount recopnised i accordance with Ind AS 37 or indtially recognised amount less
amottisation. of fair value. In case of the financial guarantees given o lenders of feltow subsidiaries with
no compensation, the fair value is recorded as dividend paid to the Holding Company. The fair value is
measored at the present value of the guarantee commission income oves the effective period of the
guarantee. The goarantce commission income from the date of guarantee till the date of tansition has
been treated as an increase in Retained carnings as on date of wansigon ie 1 Aprit 2015, Purther, the
financial guarantee. income for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 is treated as an income
i the Statement of Profit and Loss for respective financial vears,

¢. Loss on account of sale of invesiments in jointly controlled entity

Under previous GAAP, the loans given to jointly controlled entity are recorded at transaction vahie and.
the cugrent investments are shown at lower of cost and net realisable value, Under Ind AS, al) financial
assets are required (o be recognised at fais value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued the loan given
to jts jointly controlled entity - Cybesgabad Expressways Limited (C2L) under Ind AS. The difference
between the carrying value and the fair value on lhc’ date of nanqﬂcuon ]ms bcu: treate (“] as 1;3\7csunon{'
>1mde in t he ;omtly 0 ';‘_c_)_)l_g_d ._e_1_1_l;ity. o : :




Gayatti Highways Private Limited

(Formesly Gayatri Domicile Private Linited)

Sumunary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for Consolidation
; (All amousnts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

30 Specified bank notes (SBN)

Other
SBNs denomination ‘Fotal
notes

Closing cash i hand as on 8 November

2016 - : 2,849 . 2,849
(-} Pertnitted receipts - - -
() Permitted payments - - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30

December 2016 - 2,849 2,849

31 The Company’s principal objectives are to provide infrasttuctural facilities either on its own or through
incorporating and investing in special puspose vehicles. Consequently, the Company has significant
investenents in its jointly controlled companies and other entities. On the basis of assessment of the nature
of business of the Company, duly suppotted by an independent opinion from an expert, the management
is of the view that the Company is not a Non banking financial institution under the provisions of Section
45.1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. '

32 'The Company has been incurring operating losses during the past few years and the current liabilities of
the Company exceeds its current assets. This tnatter is raising substantial doubt on Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in foresceable future. Notwithstanding the above, the accompanying financial
statements has been prepared on going concern basis as the holding company has gnaranteed support to
the Company and management believes that the jointly controlled entities wili gencrate sufficient cash
fows 1o support the Company.

33 Segment reporting
Based on the Company's business model and considesing the internal financial seporting to the
management, the Company has identified only one reportable segment Le: "construction, operations and
maintenance of roads, highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads"

This 1s the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies
and Other Haplanatosy
Information for Consolidation

Tior and on behall of Board of directors of
Gayatri Highwayp Private Limited
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